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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Good

          3  afternoon, everyone. Happy New Year, to those whom I

          4  haven't said that to yet.

          5                 I am Council Member Leroy Comrie, and

          6  I'm not the Chair of the Housing and Buildings

          7  Committee.

          8                 As you know, Council Member Madeline

          9  Provenzano is the Chair, she is delayed at a

         10  community meeting where she is a keynote speaker,

         11  but we do expect her to join us as soon as she can.

         12                 On behalf of the Committee, I want to

         13  thank all of you for attending this very important

         14  hearing on Intro. 237, which will require workers on

         15  supported scaffolding to be trained in safe work

         16  practices and to obtain a certificate of fitness.

         17                 Today the Housing and Buildings

         18  Committee is conducting its first hearing on this

         19  important piece of legislation.

         20                 Over the years, the failure to use

         21  properly trained workers has led to accidents, death

         22  and the issuance of violations for badly constructed

         23  scaffolds and the improper use of such scaffolds.

         24                 Sadly, too many people have died as a

         25  result of either ignorance or disregard for safety
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          2  standards.

          3                 Intro. 237 will begin to remedy this

          4  problem, by ensuring that each user and builder of a

          5  support scaffold will be trained in appropriate

          6  procedures.

          7                 Today the Committee expects to hear

          8  from the Department of Buildings and knowledgeable

          9  professionals in the building trades who are

         10  constructing work on supported scaffolding and are

         11  in a unique position to advise the Council.

         12                 If anyone would like to testify that

         13  hasn't signed in previously, if you could let the

         14  Sergeant-at-Arms know, and sign in with the

         15  appropriate sign-in form, which I'm sure most of the

         16  members, people in this room are familiar with.

         17                 I'd just like to introduce the

         18  members of the Committee that are here, and I'm sure

         19  other members will be arriving, but since we wanted

         20  to start, the Commissioner is here, and I want to

         21  thank her for coming on time.

         22                 We have Council Member Katz. Council

         23  Member Melinda Katz, the Chair of the Land Use

         24  Committee.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I do that to
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          2  people.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I know.

          4  You choke me up all the time.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I try.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council

          7  Member Tony Avella from Queens; the Chair of the

          8  Land Use on Zoning and Franchises, and Deputy

          9  Majority -- Majority Leader, excuse me, Joel Rivera,

         10  have joined us so far.

         11                 And we have the Council for the

         12  Committee, Terzah Nasser, and Sarah Marks, the

         13  Policy Analyst.

         14                 We are pleased that the Commissioner

         15  of the Department of Buildings is here with us, and

         16  David Pechefsky, Analyst for the Finance Department.

         17                 We are pleased that Commissioner

         18  Lancaster is here from the Department of Buildings

         19  to speak on this issue at this time, and at this

         20  point I'd like to turn over the microphone to

         21  Commissioner Lancaster, and welcome her here this

         22  afternoon.

         23                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Thank you.

         24  May I call you Mr. Whip?

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: No,
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          2  please, just call me Council Member.

          3                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Council

          4  Member Comrie, and members of the Housing and

          5  Buildings Committee, and Council Member Katz, my

          6  name is Patricia Lancaster, and I'm Commissioner of

          7  the City's Department of Buildings.

          8                 With me is Mark Topping, Deputy

          9  Commissioner for the Department, and Phyllis Arnold,

         10  its General Counsel.

         11                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         12  speak this afternoon regarding Intro. 237.

         13                 Let me begin my remarks by stating

         14  that the Department of Buildings wholeheartedly

         15  supports this bill's primary purpose, ensuring that

         16  individuals that have the qualifications and

         17  expertise to safely erect and use scaffolding, or

         18  have some training and certificates.

         19                 Recent accidents, including the

         20  deaths resulting from the 2001 scaffold collapse at

         21  215 Park Avenue South, have demonstrated that

         22  improper scaffold installation and use poses a

         23  significant risk to the safety of those working on

         24  construction sites and to the public at large.

         25                 In response to this evidence, the
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          2  Department last year formed a scaffolding task force

          3  to assess the problem of scaffold safety in-depth

          4  and to recommend legislative and other remedies as

          5  necessary.

          6                 Our consideration was informed by a

          7  safety summit which I convened last November in

          8  which I asked representatives of the labor industry,

          9  labor, management and government to consider some of

         10  the potential causes of construction site accidents

         11  and to suggest possible solutions.

         12                 One of the recurring concerns voiced

         13  there was lack of adequate training for those on

         14  construction sites, including those installing and

         15  using scaffolds.

         16                 A key suggested step in addressing

         17  the problem was requiring adequate training and

         18  assuring its availability.

         19                 I believe the Council is on the right

         20  track to call for training for individuals who both

         21  install and dismantle scaffolds and for those who

         22  work on them.

         23                 Indeed in previous testimony the

         24  Department suggested a number of points that have

         25  already been incorporated in today's bill.
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          2                 However, further research in

          3  consultation with the industry, and for that we

          4  thank them for their participation, suggests that it

          5  would be helpful to come at this problem from a

          6  slightly different angle, one of that recognizes

          7  some of the operational distinctions between these

          8  two affected sectors of the construction industry,

          9  i.e., the scaffolding installers, and the trades

         10  that use the scaffolds.

         11                 Let me explain. The bill before you

         12  creates a new certificate of fitness requirement for

         13  individuals who erect, dismantle, repair, maintain

         14  or modify any supported scaffold, and for those who

         15  are on a supported scaffold, to sustain such tasks

         16  or in the erection dismantling, repair, maintenance

         17  or modification of a building or a structure.

         18                 The bill thus covers employees of

         19  scaffolding companies who erect and dismantle

         20  scaffolds, as well as scaffold users, that is

         21  members of the trade engaged in building work

         22  unrelated to the erection or dismantling of the

         23  scaffold itself.

         24                 The proposal calls for a uniformed

         25  training standard for all such certificate holders.
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          2                 Our research indicates that these are

          3  in fact two very different sectors of the

          4  construction industry with two very different sets

          5  of operating practices and regulatory needs.

          6                 Scaffolding companies typically

          7  engineer the scaffold, erect it in the field and

          8  then leave the site unless and until they are called

          9  back to modify or dismantle it.

         10                 Those working on the scaffolds, on

         11  the other hand, though uninvolved in the scaffold

         12  erection, design or dismantling, use it every day.

         13                 Their activities generally entail

         14  manipulating scaffolds platforms, loading it with

         15  material, and working in and around its structural

         16  elements.

         17                 Scaffold users thus require a

         18  different level and type of familiarity with the

         19  scaffolds construction and operation than scaffold

         20  installers.

         21                 By requiring a uniformed standard for

         22  certification, certification qualifications, Intro.

         23  237 would either lower the level of qualification

         24  and training required for the scaffold installers to

         25  that necessary for users, or unnecessarily force the
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          2  laborers who use scaffolds to have the same level of

          3  qualifications as the installers.

          4                 We would, therefore, propose that the

          5  bill address the different needs of these two

          6  sectors of the construction industry.

          7                 In addition, by proposing the

          8  certification of all individuals working on

          9  scaffolds, Intro. 237 moves to fill gaps in New York

         10  City's regulatory scheme governing those who do

         11  construction work.

         12                 My staff and I have been studying

         13  this issue as well, and are not yet convinced that a

         14  certification scheme for all individuals working on

         15  construction sites, as Intro. 237 portends is the

         16  most effective approach to ensure the accountability

         17  and safety of those performing the work.

         18                 We are considering alternatives that

         19  we hope will bring a high level of accountability

         20  and safety to construction operations, without

         21  putting the Department in the business of regulating

         22  tens of thousands of construction workers, which

         23  would require significant increases in staffing and

         24  budget, and last year I think there were 120,000

         25  individuals employed in construction in New York
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          2  City.

          3                 As I have indicated, the Department

          4  has been working to prepare a solution that best

          5  addresses safety concerns without imposing crushing

          6  burdens on the Department, or inefficient rigidity

          7  on the industry.

          8                 We support a multi-tiered approach,

          9  therefore. First, we support licensing companies

         10  that install scaffolds and personnel and material

         11  hoists, certifying certain of their employees and

         12  requiring training for those who install scaffolds

         13  and hoists under the direction of such employees.

         14                 Second we favor requirement that the

         15  users of such scaffold be responsible for on-site

         16  inspection by a trained individual to ensure that

         17  the structure has not been altered contrary to

         18  approved plans and specifications.

         19                 Third, like Intro. 237. We would

         20  propose certain technical changes to Title 27 with

         21  respect to required permits and related submissions

         22  for scaffolding installations.

         23                 Finally, the Department will complete

         24  its assessment of available data and recommendations

         25  for further change and, where warranted, will
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          2  implement operational measures and suggest further

          3  legislative proposals to achieve meaningful

          4  oversight of construction work.

          5                 The Department shares the Committee's

          6  concerns for safety on and around scaffolds, and

          7  looks forward to working further with Madeline and

          8  her staff to fine-tune the elements of the bill.

          9                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         10  address this issue.

         11                 I'll be happy to take questions.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you,

         13  Commissioner.

         14                 Council Member Katz has some

         15  questions. I'll defer for a moment.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you,

         17  Commissioner. We appreciate you being here once

         18  again, and it really is a sign your office and your

         19  agency has been very open and communicative with the

         20  Council, and we really do appreciate it and I want

         21  you to know that.

         22                 I've seen proposals by the Buildings

         23  Department of their own legislation which is similar

         24  to 237. Can you describe for us the differences

         25  between the two bills, for want of a better word?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Yes, the main

          3  difference, technically the bills are very, very

          4  similar. We call for scaffolding over 26 feet, to be

          5  regulated and Council's bill goes down to the

          6  ground.

          7                 But otherwise the technical

          8  considerations are very, very similar. The main

          9  difference lies in who you certify or license, and

         10  what the qualifications are for training.

         11                 Our bill calls for licensing of our

         12  proposed legislation, calls for licensing of the

         13  scaffolding erection companies, and for

         14  certification of individuals within that company

         15  that will be supervising the installation, and for

         16  those individuals to be responsible for the fact

         17  that the individuals actually doing the work of

         18  installing and maintaining the scaffolding have been

         19  trained.

         20                 In addition to that, it calls for a

         21  separate certification for individuals installing

         22  and maintaining hoisting elements.

         23                 So, the two industries are different.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right. So,

         25  basically, the certificate of fitness I think is
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          2  what we're calling it, would be only for the lead

          3  people, the ones we're supervising, and that 237

          4  calls for every worker to basically have a

          5  certificate of fitness.

          6                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: The

          7  certificate of fitness called for in the Council in

          8  Intro. 237, calls for that for anyone erecting,

          9  maintaining, installing and using, that's probably

         10  50,000 people.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, I'm just

         12  curious, if we took out using, and we kept it in and

         13  just all the workers that were involved in it, would

         14  that be critical to you?

         15                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: It's a matter

         16  of being able to enforce the numbers of people

         17  actually using the scaffolds.  Because if you think

         18  that masons and glaciers and caulkers and

         19  electricians and sheetmetal -- I mean, excuse me,

         20  structural steel metal, subcontractors, are all

         21  using the scaffold that's a lot of people.

         22                 So, yes, it seems like it would be

         23  more difficult to enforce.

         24                 I forgot to mention one critical

         25  element in our bill, which is that we call for the
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          2  person who pulls the permit to be responsible for

          3  inspecting a scaffolding and keeping a log of the

          4  inspections.

          5                 And, so, what we're hoping to do by

          6  that is make what is usually, or sometimes the

          7  general contractor, who is in contract with all the

          8  subtrades working on the scaffolding, be responsible

          9  for making sure that they don't remove struts or

         10  modify it in any way; does that answer your

         11  question?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm just trying

         13  to figure out, I know that we want to reach a

         14  compromise on this, but I just wanted to make sure

         15  that I understand exactly what the priorities are

         16  from the Buildings Department.

         17                 The question I had then, give an

         18  approximation, I know you probably don't know

         19  exactly, how many folks would be, if we only

         20  required a certificate of fitness for your proposal,

         21  as opposed to a certificate of fitness for the folks

         22  that we cover under 273?

         23                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: We estimated

         24  about 500 superintendents, and as far as the

         25  licensing and the companies, there are ten major
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          2  scaffolding companies, and tens of other smaller

          3  firms. It's not hundreds.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Switching gears,

          5  the issue of the sidewalk sheds. I think our

          6  proposal does not include sidewalk sheds as far as

          7  the certificate of fitness, and yours does.

          8                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: No, actually,

          9  our bill covers only supported scaffolding.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The only

         11  sidewalk sheds that support the scaffolding.

         12                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: And only

         13  sidewalk protection that is an integral part of the

         14  scaffolding itself.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Do you have any

         16  idea of the numbers of that? Like relative to the

         17  amount of work done in the City of New York, what

         18  percentage of scaffolding going up has the shed as

         19  part of the integral portion of the scaffolding? Is

         20  there any way to have those types of numbers?

         21                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: I'm not

         22  certain of that. No, I don't have those numbers.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: We look forward

         24  to working out some sort of a compromise, and I'll

         25  look over your proposal in a little more detail. I
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          2  apologize I wasn't able to do that for today.

          3                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: No, it would

          4  change.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: It changed.

          6                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Thank you,

          7  Council member.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:

         10  Commissioner, as you see, the Chair has arrived, and

         11  Council Member Katz, now, I'm going to switch chairs

         12  with you right now.

         13                 Commissioner, you said that this

         14  would, the bill you felt went a little too far, and

         15  also the regulations would make the Department of

         16  Buildings have to do too many inspections; how would

         17  you -- I think you just mentioned to Council Member

         18  Katz that you would ask them to provide consistent

         19  -- how will you do the monitoring to make sure that

         20  once the scaffolding is up, that it would be

         21  maintained, that the physical structure would be

         22  able to, with constant activity not run into any

         23  structural violations or integrity violations?

         24                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Well, what we

         25  thought is that the person who pulled -- the
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          2  company, person, whatever, who pulled the building

          3  permit would be the ones most likely to be on site

          4  all day every day.

          5                 So, our bill calls for, proposal

          6  calls for the permit holder to have someone on site

          7  who performs inspections and keeps a log of the

          8  inspections.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And then how

         10  would they transmit that to the Buildings

         11  Department?

         12                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: They would be

         13  responsible for keeping it on-site, and if our

         14  inspectors come, would be responsible for showing it

         15  to our inspectors.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And you said

         17  approximately how many scaffolding companies are

         18  involved, or in the City?

         19                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: There are

         20  approximately ten major scaffolding companies. It's

         21  not an overwhelmingly large industry.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Have you had

         23  an opportunity to discuss this with them?

         24                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: We have had

         25  extensive opportunities to discuss it with them. In
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          2  fact, several of them are here to testify today, and

          3  we appreciate, want to say publicly that we

          4  appreciate the time and the commitment that it's

          5  taken from them to help us arrive at what we think

          6  is a good proposal.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: It seems like

          8  from the collapses that have happened, it's

          9  primarily because the scaffolding had to suffer

         10  undue stress, or there was some construction that

         11  required movement of the scaffolding primarily, and

         12  I think that's what led to most of the collapses or

         13  pieces. I think, one, the side of the building fell

         14  -- Council Member Stewart wants to ask some

         15  questions -- and the integrity of the scaffolding

         16  therefore was compromised.

         17                 I think primarily that's what has

         18  happened in most of the collapses, and I just wanted

         19  to know how would the Buildings Department -- are

         20  you going to leave this to self-certification by the

         21  on-site person to make sure they check it on a

         22  regular basis; is that what you're implying?

         23                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Well, it's

         24  two issues really. It's the issue of is it properly

         25  engineered, and in order to assure that it's
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          2  properly engineered, we're requiring that it be

          3  permitted and that the drawings be submitted to us.

          4  For our examination.

          5                 And that's one of the problems. That

          6  was the problem, for instance, at 215 Park Avenue

          7  South where the five people were killed, the

          8  scaffolding contractor undertook to engineer the

          9  drawings himself.

         10                 The other thing is, the users

         11  modifying -- you know, the other issue, is the users

         12  modifying the scaffolding in the field without

         13  regard to its design, and that is what we're hoping

         14  to address by having it inspected.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         16                 I want to thank you for testifying. I

         17  did have one other question, but switching chairs

         18  made me forget about it.

         19                 But I think that our bill is not too

         20  much further from yours, and if we could, I'm sure

         21  after today's hearing we'll get a lot of

         22  enlightenment from the industry as well, but again,

         23  I want to thank you for coming out and testifying

         24  and looking at this with an open mind.

         25                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: I'm sure we
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          2  could arrive at a good compromise.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

          4                 Madam Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

          6  Council member. Leroy, I appreciate you sitting in

          7  for me. You were my first choice.

          8                 And I apologize for being late. I was

          9  at what you will be at next month.

         10                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Oh, dear.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: So get ready.

         12  I paved the way. I told them how wonderful you were

         13  and what a good job you've done, so they're all

         14  waiting anxiously.

         15                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: I'll look

         16  forward to that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I thank you

         18  for your testimony. I quickly read it over, and I

         19  think we have discussed a lot of stuff that's in

         20  here and what's in the bill, and I just want to

         21  reiterate that what's happening here today, it's the

         22  first hearing on this bill. It is not, and will not

         23  be the law. It is first draft that will be gone over

         24  again and again, or at least a few times so that

         25  maybe in a month or two months we will have the bill
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          2  that we would like to vote into law, or pass into

          3  law. And I'm confident that we can all work together

          4  and come up with something that everyone is pleased

          5  with.

          6                 No one will be 100 percent happy.

          7  That's life. You can be 85 percent happy, 90 percent

          8  happy, but if you're 100 percent happy, that means

          9  he's 50 percent happy, and we like to even if off a

         10  little better than that.

         11                 So, I think at the end of the process

         12  we'll all be satisfied with our finished piece. And

         13  having said that, I would like to introduce some

         14  folks who were also not here when I was not here.

         15                 Councilwoman Diana Reyna,

         16  Councilwoman Gale Brewer, and Dr. Kendall Stewart,

         17  Council Member. Thank you.

         18                 And Council Member Lou Fidler.

         19                 The next person that wants to ask

         20  some questions is Council Member Stewart.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Good

         22  afternoon, Commissioner.

         23                 As far as subjugated fitness, why

         24  aren't all the workers that go on a scaffold have

         25  that -- why shouldn't all who go on a scaffold

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  required to have a permit; give me any reason you

          3  feel.

          4                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Well, it's a

          5  couple of issues. Good afternoon, Council member.

          6  It's a couple of issues really, one of which deals

          7  with our ability to grant a certificate, which in

          8  numbers of around 50,000 would just pump up

          9  construction cost in New York City because there's

         10  so many of them.

         11                 And the other issue deals with

         12  enforcement, which is if we need to go to a site and

         13  check each member of the staff, you know each

         14  worker, each construction worker to see if they have

         15  the certificate on them, that's an onerous task for

         16  enforcement.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes. But you

         18  may not have to be the one responsible for checking

         19  it. You can have the person who is pulling the

         20  permit being responsible for making sure that anyone

         21  that goes on the scaffold has a certificate of

         22  fitness.

         23                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Yes, that's

         24  correct.

         25                 We didn't think that requiring a
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          2  certificate would enhance safety on the site.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes, but then

          4  you would put the responsibility of liability on

          5  someone specific, the person who is responsible for

          6  that permit should be responsible, and if they have

          7  someone on that scaffold that is not trained or with

          8  the technical skills of dealing with a scaffold,

          9  they should be responsible.

         10                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Well, let me

         11  just explain that the people working on the scaffold

         12  are not scaffold employees, they're masons, for

         13  instance.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right. But

         15  you want to be able to have people on a scaffold

         16  understand the risk and the different things that

         17  happen on a scaffold that is different.

         18                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: That kind of

         19  leads into the broader picture of the regulation of

         20  construction companies in the City as a whole, and

         21  that's something that we're grappling with in the

         22  Department, as far as the overall scope of what is

         23  possible to enforce.

         24                 Because the liability for the

         25  responsible company is -- we don't want to make it
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          2  too onerous.

          3                 In other words, we have a

          4  responsibility to ensure as much safety as we can

          5  possibly enforce.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I still feel

          7  that there should be some form of training, and to

          8  ensure that form of training to be in the scaffold,

          9  it's like driving a car, if you own a car and you

         10  allow someone to get into the car without the proper

         11  requirements, the driver's license and all of those

         12  things, then the owner becomes responsible, is

         13  liable.

         14                 Likewise I feel if you have a permit

         15  and you allow, if you have a permit for construction

         16  and you allow people to go on the scaffold who may

         17  not know what to do, that wasn't trained then you

         18  should be liable and I feel there's something we

         19  should look into and we should be able to do.

         20                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: We can have

         21  further discussions.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

         23  Okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         25  Member Reyna.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you,

          3  Madam Chair.

          4                 Good afternoon, Commissioner. I just

          5  wanted to have a clear understanding. The purpose of

          6  this bill, would you happen to agree, is to regulate

          7  the industry so that we can secure its safety

          8  amongst workers on the scaffold and those building

          9  the scaffolds?

         10                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Yes, the

         11  primary purpose of the bill is to ensure safety of

         12  scaffold installers, scaffold users and the public.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And you had

         14  mentioned that there are, according to your

         15  statistics, ten companies that build or dismantle

         16  scaffolding.

         17                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Ten major

         18  companies in New York City are responsible for 90

         19  percent of the scaffolds.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Now, when you

         21  take that number, are those that do work, have

         22  contracts with the City that are registered with the

         23  City? Or are you taking into consideration those

         24  that have no contracts with the City, and therefore

         25  that number is a conflicting number?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: I'm not quite

          3  sure if you mean contracts with the City or if you

          4  mean that whole building permits, or scaffolding

          5  permits.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Well, I just

          7  find it very disturbing that there are only ten

          8  scaffolding companies in the City of New York, when

          9  in fact I'm sure there's many, many scaffolding

         10  companies, and therefore, if they do not have City

         11  contracts, there might not be part of this number

         12  ten, there could be possibly 80 companies that exist

         13  throughout the City of New York, not necessarily all

         14  of them have City contracts and do work throughout

         15  the City of New York, registered with the City.

         16                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Okay, let me

         17  clarify. I think I understand what you mean now.

         18  Which is to say that there are probably 50 to 80

         19  scaffolding companies that operate in the City of

         20  New York, it is, however, not a limitless universe

         21  of people that can do scaffolding and can get the

         22  insurance, because the insurance is very, very

         23  expensive, so the insurance is onerous for smaller

         24  -- in other words, you don't have, you don't get

         25  like a two-person scaffolding firm or a small
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          2  scaffolding firm, because it costs so much to get

          3  the insurance. So, this particular industry is

          4  particularly limited in the numbers of people that

          5  can or have or are willing to have, you know, form a

          6  company.

          7                 So, the ten, or eight or ten

          8  companies that I'm talking about that do 90 percent

          9  of the work are doing all work, not just in contract

         10  with the City. We don't obviously contract with

         11  anybody, just regulate. But these companies are

         12  doing all the private work as well.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And when we

         14  start referring to Intro. 237, because we're

         15  mentioning just ten companies throughout the City of

         16  New York, I'm confused if these other 50 to 80 other

         17  companies are going to fall under the same

         18  regulations?

         19                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Absolutely.

         20  Yes. In fact, that will help with safety a great

         21  deal.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Now, as far as

         23  the regulation, because these ten major companies

         24  have the capacity to deal with such inspections and

         25  perhaps the training that you're going, this bill
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          2  will request of the employees, how will the same

          3  effect occur with the smaller companies?

          4                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: What we would

          5  ask is that a curriculum be given to us for

          6  approval.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: A universal

          8  curriculum?

          9                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Well, a

         10  training curriculum by an entity that wants to be in

         11  the training business, and that we --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Who will create

         13  that curriculum?

         14                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: I assume it

         15  would be someone interested in training the

         16  scaffolding industry.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And then that's

         18  going to be a universal curriculum?

         19                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: We would have

         20  the capability of approving more than one, multiple

         21  or one curriculum. Once the curriculum is approved

         22  to DOB standards, then that would be an approved

         23  training.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So, if DOB has

         25  to approve these standards, why not just create one
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          2  universal curriculum?

          3                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: It seems more

          4  appropriate to let the industry develop curriculum,

          5  and we don't want to necessarily mandate that any

          6  one entity be given the test. We would say it's okay

          7  for any entity to give the test as long as they meet

          8  DOB standards.

          9                 This is similar to what we do for

         10  Rigors now, which is successful.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And who created

         12  their curriculum? There are several of them out

         13  there?

         14                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: The owners to

         16  these companies just created their own curriculum

         17  or?

         18                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Or an

         19  institute of mechanics or something like that, comes

         20  up with a curriculum and offers it as part of their

         21  offerings, their curriculum offerings.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So, why are we

         23  attempting to even regulate it if we're going to

         24  give the responsibility of creating the curriculum

         25  to these companies? Why don't they do that now
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          2  without having to pass any law?

          3                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: You would

          4  think they would.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: It just seems

          6  awkward for us to have to go through all this

          7  trouble if we can --

          8                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Well, let me

          9  answer you a different way.

         10                 I think that it's not the companies

         11  who are already doing training, that we need to

         12  approach by the legislation. It's the companies that

         13  don't do the training.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So, in

         15  actuality, these ten companies probably do the

         16  training already.

         17                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: They probably

         18  do.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: It's the 50 or

         20  80 companies that we have to get out there and start

         21  actually hosting some further inspections and making

         22  sure that they become more regulated.

         23                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: We want to be

         24  able to pull their license, or pull their

         25  certificate, if they are not adhering to the rules,
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          2  yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And a

          4  certificate exists now that they are being given in

          5  order to operate?

          6                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: That's the

          7  purposes of the legislation.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         11  Member Brewer.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 This may not be relevant, but I was

         15  just wondering how it comes in terms of monitoring.

         16  The scaffolding stays up sometimes for longer than

         17  one would assume is necessary; is that something

         18  that would come as part of the permitting process?

         19                 In other words, it's a constant

         20  complaint to our office.

         21                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: That would

         22  come as a result of a permitting process. Yes,

         23  you're absolutely correct.

         24                 The term of the permit now is one

         25  year, when they are required to renew the permit.
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          2  And when we did our scaffold sweeps earlier in the

          3  year to get more information, we found that a lot of

          4  permits had expired so we violated them.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And the public

          6  would know whether it was up for a year by looking

          7  on the Internet or going down to your office? How

          8  would the public know that the scaffolding needed to

          9  renew and hadn't?

         10                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Well, our

         11  bill requires it to be posted on the scaffolding.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: That's current

         13  bill?

         14                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Current bill.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: The one that's

         16  under consideration?

         17                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Also, as of

         18  next week you would be able to find it on the web as

         19  well.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         21  much. I like you.

         22                 The other question is, on the

         23  training, I know you talked previously about the

         24  fact that it's being done either by the business or

         25  the union or could be done by CUNY; is that what
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          2  goes on now in terms of training?

          3                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Yes, it's

          4  done by NYU or the mechanics institute.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Bronx

          6  Community College.

          7                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: This is the

          9  small companies and the day laborers. Yesterday we

         10  had a hearing on day laborers, General Welfare

         11  Committee, and I suppose that if, in fact, the

         12  Council version where everyone would have to be

         13  permitted or licensed or trained, whatever the term

         14  is, that that would include anybody hired for the

         15  day? How would that work? I'm not saying it's going

         16  to happen, but I'm just curious, because if one

         17  doesn't have papers, is one allowed to get a

         18  license? It could even be applicable as opposed to

         19  supervisors under your bill; is that an issue now?

         20  How does that work? And I assume you can't get

         21  papers, I just didn't know.

         22                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: The situation

         23  would be such that training would be required,

         24  meaning that you couldn't be not trained and come to

         25  the site and get to work.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Correct.

          3                 Can you get trained and work via a

          4  private company, if you do not have papers, meaning

          5  immigration documents? I'm just curious. There was a

          6  lot of discussion about this yesterday.

          7                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: I don't know,

          8  actually. It could be made as a requirement.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And obviously

         10  we hope that as many people work as possible. We

         11  would like to have day workers making money and

         12  participating in the workforce. That's my position

         13  anyway.

         14                 But I just thought of something that

         15  came up often yesterday. It's something to think

         16  about in terms of this training process. If you have

         17  a federal ID, I think you can do it, but that's

         18  something I wanted to know more about.

         19                 And then my other issue is the

         20  difference between the 26 feet and the ground.

         21  What's 26 feet? What was that selected for?

         22                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: It's a

         23  culmination of things. Our feeling was that we

         24  didn't want to have to make one and two-family

         25  home-owner do the same rigorous requirements that
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          2  we're expecting for multi-family and commercial. So,

          3  we wanted to not have it be zero, and we picked 26

          4  because the industry standard module of scaffolding

          5  is five feet. We took five of those and added a

          6  foot.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I would like

         10  to announce two other Council Members that have

         11  joined us, Councilman Robert Jackson, and Councilman

         12  James Oddo. And I think they're all here now, and I

         13  know they all want to beat me up because I gave the

         14  big speech when I first became chair that nobody can

         15  be late, and, you know, so, we'll talk about that.

         16                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: And the one

         17  with the sense of humor is here now, too, right?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Although it

         19  looks quite serious today.

         20                 Lou Fidler, you're next.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you,

         22  Madam Chairperson.

         23                 Commissioner before I ask anything I

         24  want to just reiterate what I think I said to you

         25  the last time you were here, that my 20 years of
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          2  dealing with the Buildings Department, under your

          3  aegis it has been more responsive and better managed

          4  than I have ever seen it.

          5                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Thank you

          6  very much.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: You're

          8  welcome.

          9                 I ask to the subject matter of

         10  today's bill, I mean I'm a little confused about

         11  some of it. I'm just an old country lawyer from the

         12  outskirts of Brooklyn, so...

         13                 I'm serious, I don't understand, if I

         14  understood you correctly, the Council proposal would

         15  deal with all scaffolding, your proposal would not

         16  deal with scaffolds under 26 feet?

         17                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Why is that?

         19                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Well, it's a

         20  combination of reasons, actually. It's that we don't

         21  think that we want to make one- and two-family

         22  home-owners have to erect scaffold, and that we also

         23  think that the industry standard of five foot

         24  modules is borne out by this with a little bit of

         25  leeway with the extra foot. So, 5 5 5 5 5 and then
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          2  one foot.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, I'm not

          4  too sure I understand the one- and two-family

          5  home-owners, I mean, we don't want to add to burdens

          6  of one- and two-family home-owners, but if they're

          7  doing work that requires a scaffold, isn't the

          8  burden on the scaffolding company or the contractor?

          9                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Well, if

         10  you're requiring that it be permitted, then it means

         11  someone has to go to the Building Department and

         12  pull a permit, and, so, the one- and two-family

         13  home-owners that wanted to fix their windows would

         14  have to go get plans engineered, and signed by

         15  licensed professional, and then go to the Building

         16  Department, file a permit and then have all these

         17  inspection requirements. I think it would add a lot

         18  of the cost and not really help with the safety that

         19  much.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay.

         21                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: That was our

         22  concern.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: That I could

         24  understand.

         25                 So, wouldn't that be dealt with
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          2  effectively by exempting one- and two-family homes

          3  from your proposal?

          4                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Well, I guess

          5  there's much of that. I'm open to discussing that. I

          6  think as much as that we felt like falls from under

          7  26 feet probably aren't as onerous as falls from 70

          8  and 80 feet.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay. So, now

         10  I'm going to show you how completely ignorant I was.

         11  I thought you were talking about length of 26 feet,

         12  not height.

         13                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Oh.

         14  Twenty-six feet high, right. Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, listen,

         16  I'm not afraid to say -- you're proposal is not yet

         17  ready for --

         18                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: That's right.

         19  We are ready to discuss it at any time, and in

         20  preliminary conversations with the Chair, Madam

         21  Chairwoman, we believe that we can find some common

         22  ground and go forward with a bill that really

         23  protects public safety and the safety of the

         24  construction workers fairly quickly.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Oh, well, I'm
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          2  glad to hear that.

          3                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: I guess we're

          4  all on the same page in terms of trying to move

          5  something forward.

          6                 This is something I know I spoke to

          7  the Chairwoman about earlier in the year, that

          8  scaffolding is a big issue for me. And while it is

          9  not relevant to the safety issue, if we can also

         10  perhaps address the proliferation of signage that

         11  has gone up commercial and otherwise on scaffolding.

         12  It's almost become a freeway of violating the

         13  anti-postering law in the City. You know, if that

         14  can also be addressed at the same time, if you take

         15  one broad look at that scaffolding, you know,

         16  certainly the safety issues are a priority, but the

         17  aesthetics of them as well I think maybe can be deal

         18  with at the same time.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Well, if I

         20  could comment. We did have quite a lengthy meeting

         21  with the Commissioner on our bill, and some of the

         22  things -- and I hate to call it our bill and their

         23  bill, because ultimately it will be our bill, but we

         24  did have a good conversation and we definitely are

         25  not very far apart. And also commenting on what's
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          2  near and dear to your heart, is also something that

          3  I really would like to address too.

          4                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: And by the

          5  way, signs on sidewalk sheds now, unless they're

          6  accessory, are illegal, and you'll be happy to know

          7  when you walk out the front door of City Hall, that

          8  vanilla Coke thing on the Woolworth building, gone,

          9  violated. Out of there.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And just the

         11  last point, you mentioned somewhere in passing, I

         12  think when you were responding to Councilwoman Katz,

         13  the issue about licensing contracts, I know we've

         14  talked about that, and I know that's something that

         15  we really would like to see some movement on from

         16  the Department as quickly as possible, because that

         17  is a huge problem, as you know, in the City of New

         18  York.

         19                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: I do. And

         20  we've had, as I think you can imagine, lengthy and

         21  detailed and complex and convoluted discussions in

         22  the Department, as well as when I convened the

         23  safety summit here in November, we need to

         24  understand what the real issues are.

         25                 Part of the issue for us as DOB is
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          2  that we had not previously tracked data in a

          3  meaningful way to understand what the real safety

          4  hazards were, and if we're going to license, if

          5  we're going to figure out a regulatory scheme so the

          6  contractor can't do bad things, it would he helpful

          7  to know what the bad things were in what quantities

          8  and with plan, you know, so we can really get to the

          9  heart of the matter.

         10                 Because it's really very much of

         11  concern, as it is to you, I know.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         13                 Commissioner, will you be leaving

         14  someone here in case some strange questions come up?

         15                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Oh, no,

         16  absolutely. Members of my staff will be here.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         18                 Thank you very much. We always

         19  appreciate you being here.

         20                 Our next person to testify is Kenneth

         21  Buettner, New York Scaffold Equipment Corp.

         22                 Just for the record, I would like to

         23  let folks know that we received comments from CHP,

         24  that's Dan Margulies, and a testimony for Queens

         25  County Builders and Contractors, and we will be
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          2  putting both into the record.

          3                 Ken.

          4                 MR. BUETTNER: Good afternoon. My name

          5  is Kenneth Buettner, and I am President of York

          6  Scaffold Equipment Corp of Long Island City. I'm

          7  third generation of our family-owned and operated

          8  business, which is help maintain and build New York

          9  City and its surrounding area for over 75 years.

         10                 My participation began over 28 years

         11  ago, I am proud to continue our family's tradition.

         12                 Additionally, I am the past president

         13  of the Scaffold Industry Association, and have been

         14  active in that organization since 1977.

         15                 The Association has over 900 members

         16  throughout the US and Canada, who manufacture,

         17  install and use scaffolding.

         18                 Since 1993 I've been seated on the

         19  Executive Committee of the State Insurance Fund,

         20  Construction Industry Safety Group 469, and I'm a

         21  member of the North American Society of Scaffold

         22  Professionals, and I have been part of many federal,

         23  state and city supported and suspended scaffold

         24  safety task forces and work groups.

         25                 During my years in this industry,
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          2  I've seen complicated and improved and impressive

          3  scaffold and sidewalk shed jobs done well, but I've

          4  also seen simple scaffolds and sidewalk sheds

          5  installed and used in a truly dangerous manner.

          6                 In recent years we've become used to

          7  seeing reports in the news of scaffolds and sidewalk

          8  sheds which have collapsed. Such events have become

          9  so recognizable to the public that two weeks ago an

         10  episode of the popular television show Third Watch

         11  revolved around the collapse of a sidewalk shed and

         12  supported scaffold and the efforts of the police and

         13  fire personnel to treat injured workers and maintain

         14  crowd and traffic control.

         15                 We would be wrong to think that a

         16  sidewalk shed scaffold, which was made to be

         17  installed was dangerous on purpose. Nobody sets out

         18  to erect or alter a sidewalk shed or scaffold that

         19  would kill or injure themselves, co-workers or

         20  passers-by.

         21                 These "Rube Goldberg" installations

         22  are the result of well-intentioned people who are

         23  unfortunately ignorant of how to do the job

         24  properly.

         25                 It is only by training these people
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          2  that we will learn to do the job right.

          3                 Clearly, the intent of 237 is

          4  laudable, that being safety for workers and the

          5  general public. It carries forward the OSHA

          6  requirements, that both scaffold erectors and users

          7  be trained.

          8                 Unfortunately, this requirement is

          9  all too often ignored, as OSHA inspections for

         10  compliance for this requirement are virtually

         11  non-existent.

         12                 OSHA issues fines for non-training

         13  only after it's investigated job-related fatalities,

         14  which is obviously too late to prevent the accident.

         15                 To be sure safety will prevent

         16  injuries and save lives, but it is also economical.

         17  The relatively short, small short-term cost to

         18  proper training is a minor investment in long-term

         19  savings. Both workers compensation and general

         20  comprehensive liability insurance premiums have

         21  skyrocketed in the last few years.

         22                 These increases in the cost of

         23  operation for a sidewalk shed and scaffold erectors

         24  and contractors are passed along to developers and

         25  building owners.
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          2                 Rates for both of these insurances

          3  are determined by recent industry-wide losses in our

          4  area. Some small individual adjustments are made on

          5  behalf of a contractor's experience, but the

          6  majority of the rate is set in relation to accidents

          7  which do not involve the specific contractor.

          8                 To make it simple up and down the

          9  line, we all pay more to cover insurance premiums

         10  when untrained workers do their best to erect or

         11  alter scaffolding or sheds and they cause collapses

         12  because their best is not good enough.

         13                 When sidewalk sheds or scaffolds

         14  collapse, emergency service personnel are also

         15  required at the same time, expending precious New

         16  York City budget dollars.

         17                 While I support the intent of the

         18  current proposal, I would suggest several changes.

         19                 First, the exemption for stand-alone

         20  one-story sidewalk sheds should be removed.

         21                 Regardless of their height, all

         22  sidewalk sheds are installed to protect the

         23  pedestrian public, which passes under these sheds

         24  daily.

         25                 These sheds frequently have supported
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          2  scaffolding added to them at a later date. Although

          3  prohibited, construction material is often stored on

          4  top of sidewalk sheds. By the nature of their being

          5  on sidewalks, they are often struck by automobiles,

          6  trucks and buses in motor vehicle accidents.

          7                 When improperly installed or abused,

          8  the sidewalk shed can easily collapse causing injury

          9  or death and creating public disruption.

         10                 There is no appropriate excuse to

         11  allow such sidewalk sheds to be installed by

         12  untrained workers.

         13                 Second, the current proposal defines

         14  a supported scaffold as having an area of at least

         15  50 square feet. This is too stringent a measure and

         16  would prove burdensome and expensive.

         17                 A more appropriate definition would

         18  be to include any installation over 26 feet in

         19  height. This would allow the continued simple work,

         20  such as painting, window cleaning, metal polishing

         21  to be performed in short rolling or stationary

         22  scaffold towers.

         23                 Third, the current proposal would

         24  require a permit for all supported scaffold

         25  irrespective of height. Again, this is too stringent
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          2  a measure and would be burdensome and expensive to

          3  both the contractors and the Department of

          4  Buildings.

          5                 I would suggest beginning the permit

          6  requirement at over 26 feet in height.

          7                 Most supported scaffolds under that

          8  height are installed and dismantled either on the

          9  same day or within a few days and are rather

         10  uncomplicated.

         11                 The Committee should also be made

         12  aware of a similar proposal which has been developed

         13  by Commissioner Lancaster's Office at the DOB. That

         14  proposal is more sweeping than Intro. 237, and is

         15  worthy of study in comparison for possible

         16  inclusions in the Committee's pending item.

         17                 Additionally the subject of sidewalk

         18  shed and support scaffold training and safety should

         19  not be considered independently, but is part of an

         20  overall worksite review, such as one being currently

         21  performed by the Building Trade Employers

         22  Association, the BTEA.

         23                 I commend the Committee on addressing

         24  this matter and of fostering the ultimate goal of

         25  protecting the lives of workers in the general
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          2  public.

          3                 Additionally, I offer my experience

          4  and knowledge to the Committee if it wish my

          5  assistance.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

          8  Mr. Buettner.

          9                 Do we have any questions from the

         10  Committee?

         11                 Council Member Comrie.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Good

         13  afternoon.

         14                 MR. BUETTNER: Good afternoon.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you for

         16  testifying.

         17                 You did highlight the two issues that

         18  really brought it to my mind why we wanted to bring

         19  this bill in, this discussion to fruition, which is

         20  the long-term use and the incidental use of the

         21  scaffolding, i.e., storing construction materials

         22  and what happens when there is an accident, or not

         23  necessarily an accident but other influences that

         24  may impact on the scaffolding, such as vehicular

         25  accidents or vandalism, and I'm very appreciative of
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          2  you coming to testify.

          3                 You did talk about, you agree with

          4  the Commissioner about having installations be

          5  focused on anything over 26 feet in height. My

          6  question in my district is, primarily small homes

          7  and storefronts that are not necessarily 26 feet

          8  high, but have scaffolding that could be there for a

          9  very long period, because they are taking some time

         10  to get the funding, but they have to put up

         11  temporary scaffolding to maintain the facade and it

         12  may take some time to do the necessary funding to

         13  get the money to redo the facade and therefore the

         14  scaffolding sits there for awhile. And we'd like to

         15  get some feedback from you on how that should be

         16  better maintained or erected to meet those goals,

         17  because I don't think that would fit your 26-foot

         18  height requirement on a small commercial two-story

         19  building.

         20                 MR. BUETTNER: Actually, more often

         21  when a structure is erected and is there for a

         22  lengthy period of time waiting for work to be done,

         23  it's more likely to be a sidewalk shed, which is

         24  installed to protect the public from a potentially

         25  dangerous condition the DOB might have violated.
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          2                 That may stand for a period of time

          3  while the owner figures how to do the work and how

          4  to pay for the work.

          5                 More often than not the scaffold is

          6  only erected at the time that the work is going to

          7  be done.

          8                 My reference to the 26-foot height,

          9  the Commissioner spoke a moment ago about one- and

         10  two-family homes. In addition to that, it's also a

         11  matter, if you look around the City, maintenance

         12  that's done on a regular basis, the metal polishing

         13  on store fronts, window washing, things such as that

         14  are often done on scaffolds that are installed by

         15  maintenance contractors, painting contractors, who

         16  put them up, take them down very quickly.

         17                 Scaffolding by its nature, and its

         18  requirements by OSHA code do not require being

         19  structurally tied to a building until they reach

         20  approximately 26 foot height. So, it's more likely

         21  that a scaffold that's being erected in a small

         22  height is going to be fined by itself. It's not

         23  required to be tied in, and putting permitting on

         24  that would be very difficult as well.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. So,
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          2  you're saying primarily those pieces are sidewalk

          3  sheds and not necessarily scaffold, and they

          4  wouldn't have to be tied in or anchored until they

          5  were above 26 feet high?

          6                 MR. BUETTNER: Let me clarify the

          7  difference between a sidewalk shed and a scaffold,

          8  because sometimes that becomes confusing.

          9                 A sidewalk shed is sometimes called a

         10  sidewalk bridge in common parlance. The sidewalk

         11  shed is that temporary structure that is erected

         12  over a sidewalk to protect people so they can

         13  continue to use the sidewalk while work is being

         14  done overhead, or while they're determining what is

         15  going to be done overhead.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         17                 MR. BUETTNER: That sidewalk shed is

         18  not tied to the building. There's no requirement to

         19  do that.  Structurally, if it's put up properly,

         20  will stand of its own on gravity on the sidewalk.

         21  That may be in place for a great length of time, as

         22  is your concern, if the owner is not able to take

         23  care of the needs to repair the building, but is

         24  making that sidewalk safe for people to pass

         25  underneath while that time is taking place.
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          2                 The actual supported scaffolding is

          3  built on top of a sidewalk shed or maybe from the

          4  ground up, depending upon the physical condition.

          5                 Often times the sidewalk shed is in

          6  place, and the building repair is being done by a

          7  suspended scaffold. So, a supported scaffold such as

          8  those in this particular intro, are not involved

          9  with it, but the sidewalk shed is.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And do you

         11  agree with the Commissioner's assertion that these

         12  scaffolds could be well-maintained by an on-site

         13  person? I think she termed them -- but an on-site

         14  manager who would keep a log of these scaffolds and

         15  maintenance and impact on them with construction and

         16  reconstruction?

         17                 MR. BUETTNER: Problems with

         18  scaffolding occur either because they were

         19  inappropriately or incorrectly put up, or because

         20  people made changes to them during the course of

         21  their use. It is common during the course of a

         22  scaffolds use, for example, a brick mason to remove

         23  a single ex-brace to load material onto the deck

         24  that he used, and then to put that brace back.

         25                 It is common for a tie to the
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          2  scaffold. If the scaffold is more than 25, 26 feet

          3  high, it will be tied every 20, 30 feet high, 30

          4  feet in length. It's often necessary for the user to

          5  remove that tie, to do his work, and then to

          6  reinstall it.

          7                 When the scaffold erector leaves, if

          8  the scaffold has been put up properly, there is no

          9  way for that scaffold erector to know that there

         10  aren't alterations in a dangerous way being made.

         11  That was the intent of the Commissioner's

         12  suggestion, that there be someone designated, the

         13  contractor working the scaffold, or overseeing the

         14  use of the scaffold on the site, and I do believe

         15  that that is a workable possibility.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you. I

         17  have no further questions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         19  Member Brewer.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 My question is, in terms of the one

         23  year permit, does one get, as the Commissioner

         24  indicated, if one is doing it correctly, a renewal

         25  permit every year for both the scaffolding and the
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          2  shed?

          3                 MR. BEUTTNER: Okay, current

          4  regulations are different for each. A sidewalk shed

          5  permit will currently be issued for up to one year,

          6  and every sidewalk shed is required to be permitted

          7  under current regulations.

          8                 For renewal of a sidewalk shed

          9  permit, there was a change made to the law several

         10  years ago, to address the Councilman's concern,

         11  where previously a renewal was simply of a matter of

         12  a rubberstamp going to the Building Department, it

         13  be notified that it's going to remain in place.

         14                 The change made several years ago

         15  requires that for renewal of a sidewalk shed, the

         16  permit holder must bring to the Commissioner or to

         17  the Department a letter from the architect or

         18  engineer of the owner, who is doing work on that

         19  building, certifying what work has been done, how

         20  much work is still necessary to be done, and how

         21  much longer they anticipate the shed needs to remain

         22  in place.

         23                 It's only upon completion of that,

         24  that the Department will issue a renewal of that

         25  sidewalk shed permit.
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          2                 Scaffolding is a whole different

          3  animal. Currently, supported scaffolding permits are

          4  given at a 75-foot height, and they are renewable

          5  annually, by simply going down and making a renewal.

          6                 It is rare that a scaffold will stay

          7  in place that long for a structure that high.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Mostly the

          9  sheds that people see in the neighborhood, and they

         10  get them mixed up.

         11                 MR. BUETTNER: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Now can you do

         13  the shed renewal with the letter and so on on line?

         14                 MR. BUETTNER: No. That requires

         15  physically going to the department.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Would you like

         17  to do it on line?

         18                 MR. BUETTNER: We have been in

         19  conversation with the Department to try to do such

         20  things and they're working on it.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 MR. BUETTNER: You're welcome.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         25  Member Avella.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you,

          3  Madam Chair.

          4                 I just want to go over this testimony

          5  once again, because I'm still a little bit confused

          6  as it relates to the shed and the scaffolding. In

          7  terms of the height requirement, if you can, just go

          8  over it one more time. Because in your testimony you

          9  mentioned about the sidewalk shed, there's no excuse

         10  to allow sheds to be installed by untrained workers.

         11  Then you immediately go into that we should change

         12  the wording in the bill so that scaffolding doesn't

         13  involve anything under 26 feet.

         14                 So, we're talking about two separate

         15  entities; am I correct?

         16                 MR. BUETTNER: That is correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: What are you

         18  suggesting in terms of the shed, and what are you,

         19  as opposed to the scaffolding?

         20                 MR. BUETTNER: I believe that sidewalk

         21  sheds should be permitted, as they currently are,

         22  requiring a permit in each and every instance.

         23                 I also believe that sidewalk sheds

         24  should only be installed by persons who have been

         25  trained.
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          2                 Currently, an untrained worker can

          3  put up a sidewalk shed, if their employer or the

          4  building owner or someone else obtains the permit.

          5                 I tried to indicate that a sidewalk

          6  shed -- a sidewalk shed actually is something that

          7  is a security item. People look at a sidewalk shed

          8  as providing protection, and yet the sidewalk sheds

          9  can be installed by untrained workers who don't know

         10  what they're doing.

         11                 At least a scaffold is more often

         12  than not within a worksite, and is not affording

         13  protection for the people who are walking underneath

         14  it, it's intent is to provide access for workers

         15  doing the work on the facade of the structure

         16  itself.

         17                 The scaffolding I believe is not

         18  necessary to have trained workers under 26 feet, I

         19  believe that that would be burdensome to do that,

         20  but definitely for sidewalk sheds.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         23  Member Stewart.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         25  Madam Chair.
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          2                 Earlier you spoke about the sidewalk

          3  shed and scaffolding and you said that "if it's done

          4  properly." Then shouldn't we really have someone

          5  determining that it's done properly? Shouldn't you

          6  have someone really in some sort of way of dealing

          7  with that aspect?

          8                 MR. BUETTNER: Ideally every scaffold

          9  and sidewalk shed that were installed could be

         10  inspected by the Building Department, certify that

         11  everything is done properly.

         12                 Realistically that's an impossibility

         13  for manpower and budgetary reasons.

         14                 Currently there is no training

         15  required in any manner, shape or form for persons

         16  installing sidewalk sheds, and there is no training

         17  required for persons installing scaffolding.

         18                 At the very least by having people

         19  who have been trained, are working among other

         20  people who were trained, they develop an

         21  institutional knowledge of how to do something

         22  properly, and if they see a co-worker attempting to

         23  do something wrong have the knowledge to point out

         24  to him or her that they're doing something

         25  improperly.
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          2                 Yes, it would be wonderful to be able

          3  to have everything certified, but it's not a

          4  practical --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes, but we

          6  spoke earlier about having people who get the

          7  certificate of fitness being able to, you know,

          8  being trained to do a set of scaffold, or even work

          9  on a scaffold, and the Commissioner said basically

         10  that that shouldn't be the way to go.

         11                 What do you think about that? Another

         12  way of certifying or make sure that people

         13  understand what to do?

         14                 MR. BUETTNER: Maybe I misunderstood.

         15  Maybe I'll use a comparison. The current regulations

         16  for suspended scaffolding, those would be for

         17  workers who are using a scaffold that is hanging

         18  from the parapet or the roof or on a cantor-levered

         19  roofing system. All workers who install a suspend

         20  scaffold are required by code to be trained.

         21                 The foreman for a crew of installers,

         22  is required to be trained in excess of just what

         23  that training is. So, you see, if what is supposed

         24  to be happening is happening, every worker you see

         25  on a suspended scaffold throughout the City have all
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          2  completed training, whether they be the installer or

          3  the user.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right,

          5  so, the certificate of fitness date, you're saying

          6  that we have that in place already?

          7                 MR. BUETTNER: For a suspended

          8  scaffolding, yes, you do. For supported scaffolding,

          9  which is the built up frame-type scaffolding, offers

         10  sidewalk sheds, you have nothing, which is the

         11  beginning of the intent of this proposal.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

         13  But we are saying that any scaffolding, it has to be

         14  26 feet or above. So, I'm lost.

         15                 MR. BUETTNER: Okay, the current

         16  proposal that is before me today, before this

         17  Committee, requires training from the very beginning

         18  from the sidewalk, and that actually is too onerous.

         19                 To install a scaffold that is one

         20  section high, two sections high, even as far as four

         21  sections high, is a relatively simple thing, that I

         22  think, although it would be wonderful to require

         23  training for each and every one of those people,

         24  would put an incredible burden on the work force to

         25  be trained that way, and you would have great
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          2  difficulty having work done if people were to follow

          3  that requirement. Requiring that a person be trained

          4  for eight or 12 hours, to have a certificate so they

          5  can work on a scaffold that's six-feet high, to

          6  clean the front of a building, would be very

          7  difficult on the small contractors, it would be very

          8  difficult on the small building owners, who would be

          9  required to accept that pass-down cost, and,

         10  frankly, the statistics that I have seen do not show

         11  that the scaffold accidents that we see around us

         12  that cause injury and public damage don't normally

         13  happen at those minor heights.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Have you done

         15  any studies on that, what you just said? That under

         16  26 feet there are less accidents than above 26 feet;

         17  is that what you're saying?

         18                 MR. BUETTNER: Less dangerous

         19  accidents. There are accidents to be sure. There are

         20  accidents from people who fall off step ladders, and

         21  who stand on up-turned milk cartons and should not.

         22  I could not cite you specifics as to how many

         23  accidents happened at what height.

         24                 I would have to see if the industry

         25  might have such statistics available.
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          2                 I know OSHA does not segregate their

          3  statistics in such a manner. I asked before, and

          4  they do not.

          5                 I'm speaking from my experience

          6  personally in 20 years of having investigated

          7  accidents and having seen them.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         10  Member Reyna.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: You had

         12  mentioned suspended scaffolding and how there is a

         13  certificate of training that exists, or a

         14  certificate of fitness rather, I'm sorry.

         15                 MR. BUETTNER: Actually, it's a

         16  somewhat complicated way that it's done. But, yes,

         17  there is a certificate of fitness, there is training

         18  required.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Why not just

         20  adopt, as far as the industry is concerned, why not

         21  just adopt what we have, with the suspended

         22  scaffolding to be the universal regulation of making

         23  sure that we have trained workers out there for

         24  whatever scaffolding is needed?

         25                 MR. BUETTNER: The workers who would
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          2  work on a suspended scaffold traditionally are not

          3  the same people who would install a supported

          4  scaffold, and, again, normally not the same people

          5  who install a sidewalk shed.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So, your

          7  sidewalk shed scaffolding workers cannot go and work

          8  on a site that's building a suspended scaffolding?

          9                 MR. BUETTNER: Unless they were

         10  certified to do both.

         11                 By the nature of the work that is

         12  performed --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: But right now

         14  we don't certify our sidewalk shed.

         15                 MR. BUETTNER: Or supported scaffolds,

         16  erectors, or users.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So they can't

         18  be dual certified. Thank you.

         19                 MR. BUETTNER: Yes. It would not be

         20  appropriate to require that a scaffold erector be

         21  certified both in suspended scaffolding and in

         22  supported scaffolding, because they're so varied in

         23  the way that they're used, you'd be putting an undue

         24  burden on the worker to be trained in both regimens.

         25                 It would be appropriate to look at
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          2  the methodology that's used for the certificates of

          3  fitness, and I believe that the Commissioner has

          4  looked at that in her proposal.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: If I understood

          6  her correctly, she had mentioned that the Buildings

          7  Department is not going to create this universal

          8  certificate of fitness. This is going to be left

          9  upon the appropriate people who are in the industry

         10  to create.

         11                 MR. BUETTNER: Actually, with the

         12  suspended scaffolds the way that it's currently

         13  done, the Department requires that there be certain

         14  number of hours of training before a person can

         15  receive a certificate of completion, for having

         16  completed a training program. And to run a training

         17  program, whoever that party is, whether it be a

         18  private industry, organization, whether it be an

         19  apprentice training program with the union, submits

         20  to the Department their curriculum and the

         21  Department would approve it. They are then allowed

         22  to run that training program and issue the

         23  certificates of completion.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: They are

         25  allowed to run that training program because they've
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          2  been certified by the Department already that their

          3  program license to give these courses?

          4                 MR. BUETTNER: That is correct. Their

          5  curriculum must be approved before they're allowed

          6  to run their program and then issue the certificate

          7  of completion.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Is it

          9  acceptable to say that the employer will take on the

         10  cost of training their employees?

         11                 MR. BUETTNER: In the suspended

         12  scaffolding example, in most cases the employers

         13  have done that because they need to have trained

         14  persons to work for them where they cannot do work.

         15                 Obviously there are going to be

         16  people who will take the training and leave that

         17  employer and go some place else, that is a

         18  possibility in any instance. No different than if

         19  someone working for me wishes to drive one of our

         20  vehicles, and I assist him in training for an

         21  automobile driver's license, and upon finishing it,

         22  he chooses to leave me, that would be a similar

         23  situation.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And right now,

         25  because there is no regulatory system in place for
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          2  certificate of fitness, such as the sidewalk sheds

          3  --

          4                 MR. BUETTNER: Or the support

          5  scaffolding.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:-- The support

          7  scaffolding, then there is no training and therefore

          8  these employers can't facilitate those courses?

          9                 MR. BUETTNER: I think that we're

         10  confusing suspended scaffolding which currently

         11  exists with supported scaffolding.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: There is no

         13  need to issue a certificate of fitness, therefore

         14  there's no training course out there.

         15                 MR. BUETTNER: That's correct. That is

         16  correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And the only

         18  reason why you give training courses towards those

         19  who are in the suspended scaffolding business, is

         20  because it's required?

         21                 MR. BUETTNER: Well, that's really not

         22  a fair statement. There are many people who train

         23  their personnel, even though it's not required.

         24                 In the supported scaffolding and

         25  sidewalk shed industry, right now for example, most
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          2  of the major contractors who do scaffolding and

          3  sidewalk sheds, such as my company, have all of our

          4  persons trained.

          5                 We happen to have our people go to

          6  the district Council of carpenters, and they take a

          7  32-hour training program.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So, you, as an

          9  owner of your company, send your employees to take

         10  training courses in suspended scaffolding and

         11  sidewalk shed and the structural scaffolding?

         12                 MR. BUETTNER: I have my people

         13  trained for installation of the sidewalk sheds and

         14  for the supported scaffolding at the District

         15  Council, again, 32 hour programs.

         16                 The suspended scaffolding is done by

         17  us on a very limited basis, due to technicalities of

         18  the suspended scaffold law, that the employees who

         19  are doing the work on a building must be employees

         20  of the licensed rigger. So, therefore it's a whole

         21  different issue, but people who are working on a

         22  suspended scaffold really have to be working for the

         23  same person who's licensed to have put that scaffold

         24  up.

         25                 With supportive scaffolding or
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          2  sidewalk sheds, that would not be the same issue.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And that's when

          4  we run into problems?

          5                 MR. BUETTNER: Among the many issues,

          6  yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And my

          8  colleague Gale Brewer had mentioned the day

          9  laborers, and now there's a lack of training on

         10  their part and, you know, they're the first to go

         11  into jobs where they're safety is an issue. What is

         12  your comment as far as dealing with the day

         13  laborers, and how to perhaps incorporate training

         14  programs, because it seems to me if we don't deal

         15  with the day laborer issue, this problem will

         16  continue to exist.

         17                 MR. BUETTNER: There's nothing wrong

         18  with a day laborer, or person who is going to move

         19  from job-to-job, learning a trade, learning how to

         20  use equipment, and growing from that base of

         21  knowledge.

         22                 For example, working for someone who

         23  is doing, pointing or cleaning or maintenance work

         24  on buildings with scaffolds that are under 26 feet,

         25  such as I suggested, would allow a casual
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          2  apprenticeship to someone, because they would be

          3  learning with other people on a small scaffold. If

          4  it were something that they wished to get into later

          5  on and they wished to erect large scale scaffolds or

          6  worked for a contractor who did, they should take

          7  training, and they should be fully trained before

          8  they do it.

          9                 Frankly, handing somebody the ability

         10  who has never put up a scaffold before, has had

         11  minor training, to go put up a scaffold that is 60

         12  or 70 feet high, is like saying, oh, gosh, why don't

         13  we hire this guy walking down the block to run the

         14  train that's going to be lifting steel up to the top

         15  of a 40-story erection site.

         16                 It simply bypasses common sense to

         17  me. I have no difficulty with people breaking into a

         18  labor market, everybody did. Everybody learned their

         19  trade somewhere, some time, but not at the expense

         20  of safety.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: But my concern

         22  is not at the 60 height level. I'm talking about at

         23  the one through four height level, where a lot of

         24  the scaffolding is in the outer boroughs, let's say,

         25  where you have low density, rather than high
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          2  density, and a lot of these accidents are occurring

          3  in the outer boroughs, because there's a lack of

          4  training amongst the day laborers in the outer

          5  boroughs than you do in Manhattan.

          6                 MR. BUETTNER: I couldn't comment on

          7  the density or the locality of where you would find

          8  day laborers because that's really not something I

          9  have knowledge about.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: But you had

         11  mentioned that you would like to see an exemption

         12  for the stand alone one story sidewalk shed, that

         13  affects the outer boroughs, and, therefore, why

         14  would we want to take that and exempt it.

         15                 MR. BUETTNER: Again, to my

         16  experience, the accident rate is very low for lower

         17  height scaffolds.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I was reading

         19  one of these handouts that reported a few accidents,

         20  and many of them are not necessarily high, but

         21  low-density buildings, and a lot of them are

         22  schools, schools that are not, to my knowledge, the

         23  one in Maspeth, PS 153, not a very high building,

         24  but it occurs, the accidents have occurred there.

         25                 It just seems to me that when
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          2  testimonies are presented to us, that we take in

          3  only a very concentrated area, but we don't see the

          4  overall picture, and I just wanted to get your view

          5  as to why exempt something that's affecting the City

          6  of New York, not just one particular area.

          7                 MR. BUETTNER: Again, my experience

          8  has shown me that accidents will occur somewhere

          9  some time no matter what you do.

         10                 People will step on overturned five

         11  gallon pails to reach a height. People will create

         12  incredible little Rube Goldberg things that they

         13  should not do, but by and large, the dangerous

         14  accidents that cause great injury, that cause death,

         15  that cause great destruction and disruption are

         16  normally at higher heights.

         17                 Certainly I would be happy to see

         18  training for all persons at all things.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 MR. BUETTNER: You're welcome.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Any more

         23  questions?

         24                 Jimmy.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Madam Chair, may
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          2  I ask a question or two that's slightly off topic?

          3                 Council Member Reyna just brought up

          4  the word "schools," and I want to take the

          5  opportunity, to have an expert from the industry, to

          6  ask him a question or two about that.

          7                 Does the industry have a relationship

          8  with the Board of Ed, the Department of Ed?

          9                 I mean, there's obviously lots of

         10  construction taking place in and around our schools,

         11  does the SCA handle that, or does your industry

         12  provide the scaffolding and the sidewalk shed?

         13                 MR. BUETTNER: Yes, there is

         14  definitely a relationship between the scaffold and

         15  sidewalk shed installers and School Construction

         16  Authority.

         17                 The School Construction Authority, by

         18  its nature, has inspectors who go to every site and

         19  do full inspections. It is not uncommon that after a

         20  sidewalk shed or a scaffold has been installed on an

         21  SCA site, we will hear that there is something they

         22  want altered and then improved, and it may not have

         23  been something that we missed, it might be something

         24  that was changed during the course of the work.

         25                 But that is the nature of the SCA and
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          2  part of it is because of their wrap-up insurance.

          3  When you work on an SCA site, you fall both

          4  liability and worker's comp-wise under their

          5  insurance. Their insurance people will often have

          6  safety inspectors visiting sites.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Has there ever

          8  been a run on scaffolding? Has there ever been a

          9  shortage of scaffolding in the City of New York?

         10                 I see some folks in the audience

         11  shaking their heads.

         12                 MR. BUETTNER: Reluctantly, no. Not

         13  recently anyway. There was a run on sidewalk shed,

         14  some dozen or so years ago, when the School

         15  Construction Authority started recognizing problems

         16  on City school buildings, and increased the

         17  requirements on sidewalk shedding. On actual

         18  scaffolding, supported scaffolding, I would have to

         19  say no.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And that was a

         21  dozen years ago? There was nothing more recent?

         22                 MR. BUETTNER: To my knowledge, no.

         23  Believe me, I wish to God there was.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Madam

         25  Chair. I appreciate it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Any more

          3  questions?

          4                 I thank you, sir.

          5                 MR. BEUTTNER: Thank you, Ma'am.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Our next

          7  speaker will be Mike McGuire, Mason Tenders, and I

          8  chose him because I think he might be able to

          9  explain some of your questions, Reyna, about the

         10  suspended and the supported and why the suspended is

         11  in its own little area and pretty much happy doing

         12  its own little thing, and why the problems we're

         13  having are more with the supported; is that not

         14  true, Michael?

         15                 MR. McGUIRE: As you know, we worked

         16  together several years ago in the same Committee

         17  when you were just a member and not the Chair on the

         18  suspended scaffolding issue. So, we've been

         19  following, chasing this bill or a variation of it,

         20  for as long as I've been in this business, and

         21  that's about seven years, so the bill, I think the

         22  original bill is a little older than that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I think some

         24  of us are still confused about supported, suspended,

         25  that kind of stuff. We should have asked for big
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          2  pictures.

          3                 MR. McGUIRE: Yes, it would have been

          4  easier.

          5                 Generally speaking the suspended are

          6  the hanging scaffolds, you see them hanging over a

          7  side of a building on tables, supported. When we're

          8  talking about supported, we're talking about pretty

          9  much anything that's standing either from the

         10  sidewalk up, or on top of a sidewalk shed.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         12                 MR. McGUIRE: Yes, window washers work

         13  off a suspended scaffolding. Restoration workers and

         14  people doing pointing and brickface and that type of

         15  thing, usually are suspended.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: What are the

         17  ones, I saw one today, the great big cage, and it

         18  looks meshy --

         19                 MR. McGUIRE: I imagine that was a

         20  hoist. It was probably a material hoist. There was a

         21  standing scaffold around it, presumably? That's a

         22  material hoist for bringing either personnel or

         23  material up and down onto the job site.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: So is that a

         25  whole other area then?
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          2                 MR. McGUIRE: I mean, technically I

          3  would consider it, a stationary part of a stationary

          4  scaffold, but we, I believe we broke it out as the

          5  back structure and the hoist is measured separately

          6  in the bill. But it gets covered under Intro. 237.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Because it

          8  was a huge elevator-type thing.

          9                 MR. McGUIRE: Yes, that's a hoist.

         10  That's a material hoist or for moving personnel.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         12                 MR. McGUIRE: I'll identify myself, I

         13  guess. Mike McGuire, Mason Tenders' District Council

         14  of Greater New York. I have with me today Timothy

         15  Warrington from the Mason Tenders' Training Fund,

         16  who can answer any questions you may have on

         17  training and certification of workers.

         18                 I've addressed this Committee on the

         19  subject of scaffolding several times in the past.

         20                 In 1999, the Building Department

         21  promulgated rules changes, which we just spoke

         22  about, regarding suspended scaffolds. These rule

         23  changes, which have undoubtedly saved lives going

         24  into effect were made in response to the good work

         25  of the Housing and Buildings Committee under its
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          2  former Chair Archie Spigner and with Madam Chair as

          3  a Committee member.

          4                 The discussion today is on the

          5  erection and maintenance of stationary scaffolds.

          6                 A deadly and very high profile

          7  scaffold collapse occurred in August 1998 at the new

          8  Conde Nast building near Times Square.

          9                 The scaffolding supporting the job

         10  site's hoist collapsed and the tower scaffolding

         11  crashing through the roof of a neighboring building,

         12  killing an elderly tenant as she sat in her

         13  apartment.

         14                 In that case OSHA investigators fund

         15  that some bolts from the scaffolding had not been

         16  properly tightened, that braces to a line in the

         17  structure and keep it from moving were disconnected

         18  and that workers installing windows had been

         19  disconnecting and reconnecting parts of the scaffold

         20  so as to have easier access to their work areas.

         21                 In October 2001, a 20-story

         22  stationary scaffold collapsed in Grammercy Park

         23  killing five workers, and injuring more than a dozen

         24  others, including several firefighters and police

         25  officers hurt in the rescue effort.
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          2                 On May 16th, 2002, a stationary

          3  scaffold erected inside a town house in the East 60s

          4  collapsed, killing two more workers.

          5                 In this case, the job site had been

          6  visited shortly before the collapse by two labor

          7  union business agents, who were attempting to

          8  organize the contractor.

          9                 Upon entering the building, the

         10  business agents immediately recognized that the

         11  scaffold was improperly erected and overloaded with

         12  material. There are warnings to the contractor that

         13  he should bring his men down off the scaffold, until

         14  the situation was rectified and went unheeded,

         15  resulting in two dead workers, and the contractor

         16  and his foreman being charged with manslaughter.

         17                 Of course, these charges are a small

         18  consolation to the family of the two dead workers.

         19                 In June of last year, an entire block

         20  of scaffolding outside the Sanitation Department

         21  garage collapsed onto West 57th Street, shutting

         22  down access to the West Side Highway for days.

         23                 The investigation showed that the

         24  scaffold had been properly, had been erected

         25  properly by the scaffolding company, but has been
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          2  improperly maintained by the company using it Rapid

          3  Demolition.

          4                 Thanks to the good work of the City

          5  Council, including Speaker Gifford Miller and

          6  members of this Committee, Rapid Demolition has been

          7  barred by the Comptroller's Office from Citywork for

          8  the next five years.

          9                 This is perhaps the best argument for

         10  issuing a certificate of fitness for those repairing

         11  and maintaining scaffolding. It would be onerous and

         12  costly to have the scaffolding company keep an

         13  employee at the site at all times, even though they

         14  are performing no further work.

         15                 I have been a laborer for 23 years

         16  and have worked on and around a stationary

         17  scaffolding on occasions too numerous to count.

         18                 It has been my experience that most

         19  contractors do not follow the standards the

         20  scaffolding has put forth in the occupational safety

         21  and health standards for the construction industry,

         22  many contractors are either ignorant of these

         23  regulations or simply disregard them.

         24                 This is not to say there are no

         25  contractors who follow the regulations, some of them
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          2  do and I am sure they are represented in this room

          3  today.

          4                 The good employers are just as

          5  disturbed by shoddy practices as those of us who

          6  represent their employees.

          7                 Intro. 237 would remedy this problem.

          8  Contractors looking to cut corners would be hampered

          9  by the workers' knowledge of safe procedures.

         10  Workers attempting to do things the easy way would

         11  also be held to a higher standard by their

         12  co-workers who are properly trained.

         13                 There is good money to be made in the

         14  renting and erection of scaffolding, and,

         15  unfortunately, the erection and maintenance of this

         16  equipment is incorrectly perceived as requiring few

         17  skills.

         18                 Someone with some knowledge of the

         19  industry comes along, even someone who has enough

         20  skills to be licensed to erect scaffolding, buys the

         21  scaffolding frames and braces, hires some men off

         22  the street and hangs out a shingle of scaffolding

         23  erector.

         24                 It comes as no surprise that most of

         25  the fatalities in the construction industry occur
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          2  either on demolition sites or are scaffolding

          3  related.

          4                 We license people to drive cars. Why?

          5  Because we don't want untrained persons driving

          6  around the streets of New York behind the wheel of a

          7  two-ton vehicle. Yet, we allow untrained workers to

          8  precarious place a five or ten or 20-story spider

          9  web of steel pipe scaffolding, weighing many tons,

         10  above the sidewalks of New York.

         11                 With the enhanced local law 11 of

         12  1998, the proliferation of scaffolding contractors

         13  that began with the original building facade

         14  inspection law has increased.

         15                 With stationary scaffold seemingly on

         16  every block in Manhattan, improper erection,

         17  maintenance and disassembly of the scaffolding

         18  provides the greatest chance of injury to the

         19  general public.

         20                 Imagine if the scaffold that

         21  collapsed in Grammercy Park had been erected on the

         22  Park Avenue South side instead of at the rear

         23  courtyard. Dozens of innocent citizens could have

         24  been killed.

         25                 The inclusion of a training course
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          2  based on OSHA curriculum and approved by the New

          3  York State Department of Labor ensures proper

          4  training of the workers.

          5                 One of the complaints often voiced

          6  about such requirement is that they lock-out all but

          7  union workers from the training, denying skills and

          8  jobs to people of color and those living in the

          9  community.

         10                 The Mason Tenders' Training Fund,

         11  which administers our apprentice program, does not

         12  currently offer such a cost.

         13                 However, I have been assured that

         14  such a program can be designed and certified within

         15  two to three months. If we are able to develop such

         16  a course in so short a time, private trade schools

         17  should be able to do so in a year afforded by Intro.

         18  237.

         19                 There is absolutely no reason to not

         20  certify the fitness of those erecting, dismantling,

         21  repairing or maintaining scaffolding. An educated,

         22  empowered workforce is the best way to safeguard the

         23  public.

         24                 We fully support Intro. 237, as long

         25  as there is solid enforcement of the law.
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          2                 In one of the discussions about an

          3  earlier version of this bill, former City Council

          4  Speaker Peter Vallone said, first off it's essential

          5  that the laws on the books be properly enforced. We

          6  couldn't agree more.

          7                 Adequate training to assure proper

          8  erection and the imposition of real penalties on

          9  violators are the key to making stationary

         10  scaffolding safer for workers and the general public

         11  alike.

         12                 Contractors caught blatantly

         13  disregarding training and proper erection standards

         14  should face stiff monetary fines, high enough to be

         15  real disincentive to violating these regulations.

         16                 Those who commit repeat or willful

         17  violations should be barred from bidding on City

         18  contracts.

         19                 In light of this, and on behalf of

         20  the 15,000 members of the Mason Tenders District

         21  Council, I urge this Committee to pass Intro. 237.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         23  Mike.

         24                 Any questions?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

          3  Member Stewart.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

          5  Madam Chair.

          6                 Mr. McGuire, you heard what the

          7  Commissioner said about, and you heard what the one

          8  speaker said about having fitness for -- for people

          9  erecting and using scaffolding under 26 feet. They

         10  don't want that, they just want it above 26 feet;

         11  what is your opinion on that?

         12                 MR. McGUIRE: Yes, that's actually the

         13  first of that when I got here today, and it seems to

         14  me that the 26 feet is a pretty fair level to cut it

         15  off at. We certainly don't want to be onerous, you

         16  know, have onerous regulations on the home-owners,

         17  who may just be painting their structure or fixing

         18  the windows or something along those lines. And I do

         19  dare say that, you know, small, short scaffolding of

         20  26 feet or below and not a big structure probably

         21  are safer.

         22                 I don't think we would be opposed to

         23  having 26 feet as the cut-off line for this

         24  regulation. But, again, generally speaking, unless

         25  it's a very small contractor, if you do have a
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          2  certificate of fitness for the people working in

          3  your company erecting scaffolding, most companies,

          4  their workers will have their certificate anyway,

          5  you know, who will be erecting lower than 26 feet.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right, but

          7  with your explanation, I feel that because it's

          8  under 26 feet, it doesn't mean that we're not going

          9  to have a lot of accidents with that, because let's

         10  take, for example, as you said awhile ago, driving a

         11  vehicle because it's on your property or some place,

         12  that doesn't mean that your child who doesn't have a

         13  permit should go behind a wheel and drive.

         14                 MR. McGUIRE: Well, in light of what

         15  you just said, actually I would amend my answer to

         16  say I'm probably sitting here negotiating against

         17  myself, and I certainly would like to see a

         18  certificate of fitness for every piece of

         19  scaffolding put up. But the reality of that

         20  happening, it becomes, it really starts to weigh on

         21  the small contractor and the small homeowner where a

         22  lot of deadly accidents don't occur.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: What do you

         24  also feel about those that are above 26 feet, which

         25  having workers, just the workers on that scaffold,
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          2  not the one that's installing the scaffolding as may

          3  be, but one who is working maybe doing the pointing

          4  and all this other thing, don't you think that they

          5  should have some sort of a training as to how you

          6  should handle it if there's a problem, or they

          7  should know something about scaffold?

          8                 MR. McGUIRE: Well, scaffold users, as

          9  opposed to scaffold erectors.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right.

         11                 MR. McGUIRE: Well, we actually, we

         12  have Tim Warrington here from our training fund,

         13  they actually give a class in scaffold users, a

         14  scaffold users class now, and to train our people to

         15  work safely on it.

         16                 The original, again, the original

         17  bill that this started out as was a scaffold users

         18  for a two-point suspended scaffolding, and it kind

         19  of evolved around from two-point after DOB

         20  promulgated rule changes and became stationary

         21  scaffolding, and at some point I believe we did

         22  consider a users' bill, but the users' bill, again,

         23  perhaps us negotiating against ourselves would have,

         24  the requirements would have been so heavy on the

         25  industry, on the contractors, on the Department of
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          2  Buildings and everything else, that it would have

          3  been virtually impossible to enforce.

          4                 When scaffolding is erected properly

          5  and safely by properly trained persons, it's as safe

          6  as walking down the sidewalk. You have netting, you

          7  have railings, you know, it's tied in, you know,

          8  it's as safe as safe can be. So, if it's put up

          9  properly and maintained properly, the workers who

         10  are working on it probably can get away without any

         11  kind of special training and still be fairly safe.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Why is it

         13  such a problem if you've got to take, they have the

         14  booklets. Right now most educative fitness, what

         15  they do, they give you a booklet with all the

         16  information and you go and study it and you go and

         17  take the test, takes about 15 to 20 minutes.

         18                 MR. McGUIRE: Absolutely.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Will give you

         20  the basic understanding of what you're involved

         21  with. What's so much the problem?

         22                 MR. McGUIRE: For the record that's

         23  correct, but you've got to take into consideration

         24  the transient nature of the construction business.

         25                 We have in our biggest local in New
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          2  York almost 10,000 members. You know, at any given

          3  day they might be working on a scaffold for two or

          4  three days and then they're working for another

          5  company the next week and they might not be out on a

          6  scaffold again for months and months.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Once you have

          8  that certificate of fitness, you can go any place.

          9                 MR. McGUIRE: I understand that, but

         10  it's a job of manning the jobs and getting it done.

         11                 Again, we're certainly never opposed

         12  to training workers. We feel that's the best way to

         13  make safest construction sites in the world in New

         14  York City is to have the top training and we at the

         15  Mason Tenders' in Fiscal Year 2002 spent more than

         16  $3 million on the training of the workers and the

         17  building trades unions in general, it's estimated

         18  they spent more than $20 million on training of

         19  workers in 2002.

         20                 So any kind of training that we can

         21  give to our members, it's certainly worthwhile. Any

         22  kind of certificates of fitness for worker training

         23  that the Council wants to impose, I would be

         24  hardpressed to argue against any of them.

         25                 Again, like I say, I'm probably
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          2  negotiating against myself, knowing that the

          3  Administration might be opposed, certain segments of

          4  the industry might be imposed. But anything that

          5  makes a job site safer for workers and safer for the

          6  general public, we're in favor of.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: With that in

          8  mind, when someone gets on the scaffold, there's a

          9  certain type of health problems that may happen,

         10  with the height, and you may not know that, and if

         11  there's no way of telling that person to be a

         12  liability to that permit holder.

         13                 MR. McGUIRE: I agree, but I don't

         14  think there's any way to make, you know, 100 percent

         15  safety net in that respect.

         16                 If somebody wants to certify to the

         17  scaffold user, you know, you go through a class,

         18  you're not actually up on a 20-story scaffold

         19  training, and if they go out on 20-story scaffold

         20  and suddenly discovers they have vertigo, and the

         21  height makes them dizzy, then they can come off the

         22  scaffold and quit their job, hopefully.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: The point

         24  that it might be too late, if you have some sort of

         25  test or some sort of a thing that they have to go
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          2  through, you know, which is part of the certificate

          3  of fitness, you would know that. If they have had

          4  problems with height, they have had problems, they

          5  might have low blood pressure, whatever, and based

          6  on that you can create a health problem because they

          7  can then get dizzy and fall.

          8                 MR. McGUIRE: Again, I think we're

          9  going into a whole another realm here, checking

         10  people's health, as far as low blood pressure and

         11  along those lines, and I don't know if we have any

         12  way to test that.

         13                 When we do scaffold user and scaffold

         14  erector classes, Tim I think can address this, we

         15  build several layers of scaffold in the classes and

         16  they learn how to do it, but it's certainly not the

         17  same as being on a 20 story or 30 story scaffolding

         18  and there's no practical way for that training to be

         19  done without, you know, building an entire facility,

         20  like the firemen have a facility where they teach

         21  how to put out fires and taller buildings and they

         22  set fire, they have a brick structure, unless we

         23  were to build something like that and put everybody

         24  out on it and check them out, I don't see any

         25  practical way of doing that.
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          2                 I certainly agree with you,

          3  Councilman, but I just don't know how it could be

          4  implemented.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right,

          6  thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

          8  Member Comrie.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Good

         10  afternoon, Michael. How are you?

         11                 MR. McGUIRE: Good.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You heard the

         13  Commissioner's testimony earlier and she did talk

         14  about a couple of things, I was intrigued to see if

         15  you felt -- I mean, of course she was concerned

         16  about 50,000 people being trained or giving

         17  certificates of fitness, that would be a little too

         18  much for them to maintain and keep up with those

         19  records. And she was also concerned about how we can

         20  make this effective I think.

         21                 Have you had the opportunity to

         22  interact with them regarding this legislation and

         23  their version of the legislation?

         24                 MR. McGUIRE: I have not. I have

         25  reviewed their version of the legislation, and
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          2  generally speaking, it seems, I mean it seems decent

          3  but the DOB is already overwhelmed. I assume they've

          4  gone through the same budget cuts that everybody

          5  else in City government has, that they lost 20

          6  percent not long after January of last year, and

          7  another cut in the fall and now just another six

          8  percent or are told to cut another six percent if

          9  they got the same word that all the other City

         10  agencies do.

         11                 This is why we think that the

         12  training of the workers is better, is because the

         13  maintenance of the records and the certificates, I

         14  don't believe is that much of a big job. I mean, if

         15  it's done -- the Fire Department has done it for

         16  years, and the construction industry when you want

         17  to use oxyacetylene torch to cut steel for

         18  demolition purposes or any kind of cutting steel or

         19  fire watch, fire guard, these are various

         20  certificate of fitness that people in the

         21  construction industry hold. You go to the Fire

         22  Department, you get tested, you get your certificate

         23  of fitness, and they maintain the program.

         24                 The thing that kind of got me about

         25  their proposal was that it was DOB that was going to
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          2  like do it and promulgate the rules for training and

          3  all that, and in reality we have training funds, the

          4  carpenters have training, all the builders have

          5  training funds, there's any number of private

          6  training facilities in the City that members of the

          7  public can go to, and these are facilities that are

          8  already licensed by the State Department of Labor,

          9  certified apprentice program, and so forth, that

         10  have the structure in place to do the training. And

         11  all there would be on the Department of Buildings,

         12  would just to be track who is coming, take the test,

         13  and has their certificate. It's more a matter of

         14  just bookkeeping.

         15                 If they want to put the training on

         16  themselves, I think that the concept is doomed for

         17  failure.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         19                 And your workers, the workers that

         20  have suffered injuries, do they fall under workmen's

         21  compensation, or your union I'm sure has a health

         22  plan that covers that?

         23                 MR. McGUIRE: Well, they should fall

         24  under workers comp, it depends on the contractor.

         25  You know, the problem is a lot of times -- if an
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          2  accident happens with a reputable contractor, which

          3  it does happen on occasion, not as often as with a

          4  disreputable contractor, certainly the workers are

          5  covered under workers comp.

          6                 The problem is a lot of the time we

          7  see disreputable contractors who don't carry workers

          8  compensation, which is a violation, and then the

          9  workers are out of luck. Usually we don't see that

         10  with the signatory contractors, the organized union

         11  contractors, because we have the union doing

         12  oversight.

         13                 So, if a worker gets injured with a

         14  fly-by-night who is not carrying workers comp and is

         15  not a union signatory contractor, the worker is out

         16  of luck.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         18                 And just one last question. You

         19  talked again about you wouldn't mind doing the

         20  training yourself and you would be able to set up

         21  the training within six months; the training that

         22  you would be doing, you're talking about the sites

         23  who provide the training or just informational

         24  training for anyone that would be on the scaffold?

         25                 MR. McGUIRE: Oh, no, this would be
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          2  scaffold erectors class as is outlined in Intro.

          3  237, which will be a 32-hour OSHA curriculum for

          4  scaffold erectors.

          5                 We currently give, Tim?

          6                 MR. WARRINGTON: Currently we provide

          7  an eight-hour for supported scaffold and a 20-hour

          8  for the suspension scaffold, that's the New York

          9  City Department of Buildings, it falls under their

         10  curriculum as before. But to do a 32 hour, a 40

         11  hour, is not a problem for us at all.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Just for the

         13  people actually doing the erection of the scaffold.

         14                 MR. WARRINGTON: Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Do you do any

         16  kind of informational training for the people that

         17  are actually working on the scaffold?

         18                 MR. WARRINGTON: The scaffold user

         19  course is for the actual workers. I wouldn't say in

         20  an eight-hour course you are going to know how to

         21  erect scaffold 20 stories high. The average worker

         22  on the job site, the average laborer mason tender --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: We're talking

         24  safety. We're not talking about erection or --

         25                 MR. WARRINGTON: Right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: -- Or

          3  maintenance, just whether or not you pull out a

          4  piece of the scaffolding that the implications of

          5  that may be, or et cetera -- do you offer any kind

          6  of on-site or --

          7                 MR. McGUIRE: The eight-hour scaffold

          8  user --

          9                 MR. WARRINGTON: On the safety, going

         10  over everything from weights to heights and

         11  everything in between.

         12                 Yes, that's a scaffold user as

         13  opposed to scaffold erectors, so they understand the

         14  ramifications if they take out a cross brace or

         15  whatever, and they also understand the safe use of

         16  scaffolding and loading, loading how heavy a load

         17  you can place on a scaffold and so forth.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         19                 You referred to Rapid Demolition,

         20  which we all know was a major embarrassment to a lot

         21  of different people. Now, do you think that this new

         22  bill will cover those bad companies like Rapid

         23  Demolition?

         24                 MR. McGUIRE: Well, you're never going

         25  to --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: That are

          3  determined to -- you know, they seem like they have

          4  been doing this on a regular basis, skirting around

          5  whatever regulation was out there.

          6                 MR. McGUIRE: That's standard

          7  operating procedure for Rapid Demolition and there's

          8  a lot of companies out there like them.

          9                 You know, it certainly won't take

         10  them out of business, but it gives us more

         11  ammunition to go after them.

         12                 And you know, aside from that, which

         13  is always a good thing, it's more of a public safety

         14  issue. You know, I cited several things here,

         15  several major accidents with scaffolding, and I'm

         16  always amazed that there aren't more members of the

         17  general public killed in these accidents, because

         18  you look at them, and you look at the scaffolding

         19  outside of some buildings and it's, you know, piled

         20  up, 15, 18 stories high, you don't know who the

         21  people are who put it up. You know, if you've got a

         22  company like York Scaffolding, the folks are here

         23  and talking and they've got their workers trained

         24  and they know what they're doing, that's one thing,

         25  but we have no way of knowing who the people are,
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          2  who put it up and no idea of what kind of training

          3  the people had or any kind of training.

          4                 Or as we spoke about day laborers, I

          5  testified in a hearing yesterday about day laborers

          6  and what we could do about it, and we certainly

          7  don't want to take work away from day laborers,

          8  these people already explored it and they certainly

          9  need to feed their families. But when they're doing

         10  work that could be a danger to the general public,

         11  it's something that needs to be looked after, and

         12  the only way we could see in remedying that is to

         13  make sure that the workers are trained, because

         14  certain companies are always going to skirt the

         15  regulations to save a few bucks, and if the workers

         16  are trained and they know what they're doing, at

         17  least then they know that the company is skirting

         18  the regulations and maybe they can blow the whistle

         19  on them and maybe they can refuse to do the work,

         20  report them to Department of Buildings.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you. No

         22  further questions.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         24                 Council Member Reyna, I think you're

         25  on my list again.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you,

          3  Madam Chair.

          4                 Hi, Mr. McGuire, how are you?

          5                 MR. McGUIRE: Councilwoman.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I just wanted

          7  to clarify something you had said before. The

          8  Department of Labor you said has a licensed approved

          9  training listing?

         10                 MR. McGUIRE: No, Department of Labor,

         11  New York State Department of Labor certifies

         12  training for construction workers, apprentice

         13  programs and so forth.

         14                 Tim could probably answer this better

         15  than I could.

         16                 MR. WARRINGTON: I'm not sure what the

         17  question is.

         18                 Yes, they do certify apprenticeship

         19  programs for the state.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: If I'm a day

         21  laborer, and I wanted to get trained and certified,

         22  right now certification doesn't exist. We're trying

         23  to get to that point where we can have certification

         24  issued to the worker after they've participated in a

         25  training program.
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          2                 The Department of Labor will have,

          3  I'm assuming a listing of approved licensed

          4  apprenticeships programs.

          5                 MR. WARRINGTON: Yes, absolutely.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And as a day

          7  laborer I can go get this list and join.

          8                 MR. WARRINGTON: You can go get an

          9  application for an apprenticeship program, sure, and

         10  try and get in.

         11                 You know, there's also training

         12  entities that you can go to to get the training.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Because I'm

         14  just trying to understand, how are we going to

         15  regulate an industry that has gone out of control,

         16  considering the fact that employers are seeking out

         17  cheaper labor. I mean, let's be frank. And that

         18  means that these are the people who are less

         19  trained, less fortunate to get training, therefore,

         20  what do we do? What is the answer?

         21                 And I know that Mike said you went to

         22  the hearing yesterday. I wasn't there. I don't know

         23  what you said or how you testified to this, because

         24  it all falls into what we are trying to accomplish

         25  here today. You know, what is the answer?
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          2                 This is an industry that we're trying

          3  to control, there are day laborers out there, and we

          4  want to get them trained so that their safety is at

          5  hand, as well as the public.

          6                 MR. McGUIRE: Well, the issue today is

          7  a lot of the issue yesterday. I had a conversation

          8  after the hearing with Councilman Stewart who is

          9  Chair of the Subcommittee on Immigration, and it's

         10  sort of a catch-22 situation as far as day laborers

         11  are concerned.

         12                 And the answer is kind of the same,

         13  you want to crack down on the bad contractors, with

         14  day laborers you crack down on the bad contractors,

         15  there's no way to do that without punishing also

         16  indirectly the day laborers and they are already

         17  being exploited so you certainly don't want to do

         18  anything to further damage them.

         19                 On today's issue, I think that's the

         20  answer, proper enforcement. I think you license

         21  through certificates of fitness, the people who are

         22  supposed to be putting up the scaffolding, when you

         23  get contractors, when contractors get caught having

         24  scaffold erected by persons who are not certified to

         25  do so, you crack down on them, you crack down on
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          2  them hard and eventually you're either going to

          3  drive them out of business or you're going to drive

          4  them into doing things the right way.

          5                 But it's a matter of enforcement. We

          6  have New York City, New York State, we have some of

          7  the best laws on the books, as far as prevailing

          8  wage, as far as worker safety, all kinds of things

          9  in the construction industry.

         10                 Enforcement is atrocious. It always

         11  has been. There's virtually no enforcement on

         12  certain issues and that's the big problem, so if we

         13  could put something up there that would really crack

         14  down on the bad guys that would be the best move we

         15  could make.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I'm sorry. I

         17  know you wanted to comment on that.

         18                 MR. WARRINGTON: Well, just that the

         19  trainer would be available. I mean this is a great

         20  opportunity for people to expand their training

         21  programs. The non-union training programs, as well

         22  as the union programs, because it's a great market.

         23  The people will need training if they're working on

         24  the scaffold, and as you know the reason why people

         25  aren't out there that couldn't supply this.
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          2                 MR. McGUIRE: Absolutely. If I could

          3  just expound on what Tim just said.

          4                 The work is there. You know, I don't

          5  know what the estimate we heard yesterday, how many

          6  day laborers there are, but it's thousands upon

          7  thousands of day laborers. There's certainly more

          8  day laborers out there than there are people on the

          9  work list in the building trades unions. That means

         10  the work is there to be done.

         11                 If the good contractors can hire, if

         12  you can knock the bad contractors out of the box and

         13  keep the good guys, they'll hire the day laborers,

         14  the day laborers will be brought into the union,

         15  they'll get the proper training, they'll get the

         16  proper waivers, they'll get health benefits and

         17  everything else that they deserve for the work they

         18  do.

         19                 So, again, I think the key to

         20  everything is enforcing against contractors who

         21  violate the rules.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: How many

         23  scaffolding companies do you think there are in the

         24  City?

         25                 MR. WARRINGTON: Scaffolding
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          2  companies, I thought the Commissioner's numbers were

          3  about right. However, not all -- ten major

          4  companies. What we're missing is that although there

          5  is maybe ten scaffold companies, almost every

          6  construction company in the City has scaffolding and

          7  they all have workers that work on the scaffolding.

          8                 Now, some may never go above 26 feet,

          9  which hasn't really been resolved, but any type of

         10  construction company owns scaffold and equipment, so

         11  that's where, you know, I think people were being --

         12  it was a little confusing.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Right.

         14                 I don't want to refer to any

         15  contractor being bad or good, but, Mike, you had

         16  mentioned how there are bad contractors out there

         17  who employ and exploit the day laborers; would you

         18  say that these are the companies that do the less

         19  than 26 feet?

         20                 MR. McGUIRE: Actually I wouldn't. I

         21  mean, any major construction is going to be done by

         22  a reputable contractor, for the most part.

         23                 The reason I would say these bad

         24  contractors still do a lot of larger work and it's

         25  an unfortunate thing is because an awful lot of them
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          2  bid on work and get work on City projects, on public

          3  works projects. You know, our unionized contractors

          4  don't even bid a lot of public works projects

          5  anymore because they get underbid by these

          6  fly-by-night contractors, and these are the people

          7  who are using day laborers and so forth.

          8                 So, this is somewhere where the

          9  Council actually has the power to really crack down.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Well, do you

         11  think this Intro will help that?

         12                 MR. McGUIRE: Absolutely. Anything

         13  that helps empower the workers, train the workers,

         14  it gives us more ammunition towards the bad

         15  contractors. So, it gives you something to go after

         16  the bad guys over. It's another regulation. But

         17  again, it's a matter of enforcement. The

         18  Comptroller, the current Comptroller, Bill Thompson,

         19  he's doing a lot more work on this kind of thing,

         20  but it's a long, slow process. Prior to Alan Hevesi,

         21  none of the Comptrollers ever did any enforcement on

         22  prevailing wage violations, or that type of thing,

         23  which is under their purview.

         24                 Alan Hevesi had two full-time

         25  prevailing wage officers working, Bill Thompson has
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          2  eight. And when he asked me, you know, his people

          3  asked how many would it take to sufficiently do the

          4  job? I told him with a straight face, probably

          5  around 75. But eight is a great leap forward, and

          6  there is a lot more enforcement going on.

          7                 The Attorney Generals Office is also

          8  going after bad contractors, and, you know, if the

          9  Council could find some way to empower Department of

         10  Buildings to really crack down on these contractors,

         11  I think it would go a long way in making everything

         12  safer for everybody.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you,

         14  Mike.

         15                 I just wanted to make sure that I

         16  understood correctly if you have an opinion towards

         17  whether you prefer a license or certificate of

         18  fitness.

         19                 MR. McGUIRE: Licensed contractors,

         20  versus certificate of fitness for workers; is that

         21  what you're saying?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         23  member, is this your last, because we still have

         24  several people to testify?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: It's the last
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          2  question.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: But this is on

          5  the list of questions that you've given to us.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, shoot.

          7  Go.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Can you clarify

          9  whether or not --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, and

         11  you're asking Mike?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Right. But he

         13  asked the question whether or not --

         14                 MR. McGUIRE: I assume that's the

         15  question whether we're talking about licensing of

         16  contractors.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Right.

         18  Absolutely. Okay. Okay.

         19                 MR. McGUIRE: We always advocate for

         20  the training for the workers. That's the safest way.

         21  You know, it's all well and good to licensed

         22  contractors, but you're still going to have

         23  contractors on cut corners. If the workers are

         24  licensed --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: The certificate
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          2  of fitness is where you stand?

          3                 MR. McGUIRE: That's the safest way

          4  for everybody.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

          7                 Thank you very much, Mike. You were

          8  very helpful.

          9                 And next is Lou Coletti, who I think

         10  is trying to get out of here to go to Boston or some

         11  place.

         12                 MR. COLETTI: It's to see my son who

         13  is going to be a college student.

         14                 Thank you, Madam Chairman.

         15                 I'm going to try to respond to some

         16  of the issues I heard you ask as opposed to the

         17  testimony, because I think you're right on target in

         18  terms of the questions you're asking. And I want to

         19  congratulate you on Intro. 237, because I think it

         20  is exactly the direction that needs to be going.

         21                 My original testimony was I was going

         22  to ask you to sort of defer the bill, because my

         23  organization, in cooperation with organized labor

         24  and the Buildings Department, is about to complete a

         25  comprehensive study in public and worker safety
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          2  which we want to present to you which would outline

          3  some recommendations which would require City

          4  Council action. And it's going to be done in the

          5  next couple of weeks, and then without trying to

          6  give you too much of what's in there, let me say

          7  that one of the determinations we've done in terms

          8  of looking across the country and the region, is

          9  that safety, training and enforcement are the two

         10  things that improve construction safety.

         11                 And that's why I give this Committee

         12  and the Chairman and the members of the Committee a

         13  great deal of credit for 237 because it does not

         14  contain the licensing provision.

         15                 We, as an industry, will not support

         16  contractor licensing because it does not solve the

         17  problem they're trying to resolve.

         18                 There's been a lot of discussion

         19  about how would you monitor that type of system? And

         20  I would suggest to you, and I'm here today

         21  representing 1,500 contractors, that it is the

         22  contractors' responsibility to train the workforce.

         23  The contractors responsibility. Not the individual

         24  worker.

         25                 Last year in this City we had 25
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          2  deaths that were related to construction accidents,

          3  seven of which were day laborers.

          4                 We had 108 injuries as it relates,

          5  and these are numbers that come from the federal

          6  Department of Occupational Safety and Health

          7  Administration and from some of the reports from the

          8  Department of Buildings.

          9                 The way to manage the process is not

         10  to have the Department of Buildings ensure that

         11  50,000 people have their certifications. My

         12  suggestion would be to set up a system that is

         13  similar to what this Council adopted years ago in

         14  the site safety manager.

         15                 The site safety manager, individuals

         16  are required to take a 40-hour class. They then go

         17  to the Buildings Department with a certification

         18  from a Department of Buildings training school that

         19  says they successfully completed the class, they are

         20  issued a certificate.

         21                 When an inspector comes on the site,

         22  the first thing they do is go over and say who is

         23  responsible for safety, and unfortunately, this bill

         24  is for 15 stories and above, and I think, again, I'm

         25  trying not to tip the report, but you've hit the
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          2  point, most of the accidents are occurring on

          3  smaller companies, less than 15 stories, but if that

          4  individual does not have that card, can that show

          5  the inspector the card, that job can be shut down

          6  immediately.

          7                 And I think we can talk about a

          8  process in which if an inspector goes onto a site

          9  and asks one of the workers, let me see your card to

         10  show that you've been trained on these safety

         11  classes and that individual doesn't have it, either

         12  that individual stops work immediately, because

         13  they're a threat not only to the public but

         14  themselves, and if you find too many of them, then

         15  the inspector goes to the contractor and says, guess

         16  what? I'm issuing a stop work order for the whole

         17  project. And you can do that by having the

         18  contractor file certification, when they go to get

         19  the permit, that not only their workforce, there's

         20  been a lot of discussion today about a workforce,

         21  but there also should be training requirements on

         22  the contractors' employees, the project managers,

         23  the superintendents, they have take certain safety

         24  classes, so they know what they should be looking

         25  for.
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          2                 One of the benefits that is accrued

          3  from the site safety, even though it's 15 stories,

          4  and above, is that it's not only worked to

          5  dramatically improve public safety, but there's been

          6  a second achievement, what happens is that site

          7  safety manager is now looking every day at the

          8  working conditions on the site, so what happens is

          9  there's a worker that has a problem on the site,

         10  even though when you drafted the bill, it was

         11  drafted and passed with a focus on public safety, it

         12  has positively impacted worker safety, because the

         13  worker now knows there's somebody that's trained, a

         14  project manager, I'm going to go over and tell him

         15  there's an unsafe work condition over there and you

         16  better fix it.

         17                 With respect to scaffolding, there is

         18  a certification process in existence. I will tell

         19  you that several years ago, in a previous

         20  administration, when it was passed we opposed it.

         21                 We opposed it not because we were

         22  opposed to training, we opposed it because they were

         23  going to let every training institute come in with

         24  their own curriculum, and once the Department of

         25  Buildings said, okay, the curriculum passes muster,
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          2  they would allow them to provide these training

          3  classes.

          4                 Today, we have, if you look at that

          5  approved list, we have roofing contractors, who are

          6  approved, it shouldn't be like that. There is a

          7  standard course.

          8                 The Occupational Safety and Health

          9  Administration, just as you've outlined in your

         10  bill, has a 32-hour course. That is the course that

         11  should be required. It requires every two years that

         12  you come back and be recertified for eight hours.

         13                 That is the course that should be

         14  approved by the Department of Buildings.

         15                 We're not looking to recreate the

         16  wheel. There are mechanisms out there, what is not

         17  out there is a regulatory process to ensure public

         18  and safety, worker safety, and those are some of the

         19  things that we're going to be coming to this Council

         20  to recommend, because there are contractors that

         21  have no business in the construction industry, and

         22  they're out there, and they're primarily out there

         23  in the boroughs outside of Manhattan, and the

         24  Buildings Department has never in the past, I think

         25  currently this Mayor has been more committed to
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          2  reforming the Buildings Department under Patricia

          3  Lancaster's leadership. We've got more people,

          4  stronger enforcement, but there are an incredible

          5  number of construction projects in this City. It is

          6  impossible to enforce every law that's on the books.

          7                 So, part of some of the

          8  recommendations we're going to include to you is,

          9  you need to set up a system and tie it to the

         10  permitting system. When there is a bad contractor,

         11  and you've got proof that time after time that that

         12  contractor hasn't trained his workers, people have

         13  been killed or injured on this site because of their

         14  own negligence, the Department should be able to not

         15  issue that permit.

         16                 Believe me, in our industry, where

         17  you don't get your permit issued, they get your

         18  attention. You can't work and you can't pay anybody.

         19  And I think we have to come up with a system that is

         20  almost frontloading. Yet, at the same time, requires

         21  every single contractor to provide some level of

         22  training for the contractors' project management

         23  personnel, as well as the workforce.

         24                 This is not rocket science, but I

         25  think yesterday and I hope this doesn't get taken
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          2  out of context, I was struck by reading some of the

          3  newspaper articles about the Mayor's proposals to

          4  overhaul the Board of Education, and looking at this

          5  bill and the issue that you've decided to take, I

          6  think you have a tremendous opportunity to

          7  dramatically improve public safety and construction

          8  worker safety in the city, because right now there

          9  is no process. You've got a whole bunch of

         10  requirements on the books, and maybe if you're lucky

         11  they get enforced, and it's not because of any lack

         12  of effort, but the issue of requiring contractors to

         13  train their people, takes the worker out of the

         14  middle.

         15                 And it's not expensive. The OSHA

         16  class I'm talking about, the way OSHA works is one

         17  person from the company takes the class, is issued a

         18  card, that person is a certified instructor and can

         19  train the rest of the people in the company. There's

         20  no excuse for anyone who wants to be in this

         21  business full time not to do that for their own

         22  benefit and for their own protection and that of

         23  their workers.

         24                 So, with that, I want to thank you

         25  for your consideration, and I'd be glad to answer
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          2  any questions you may have.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I just had

          4  one question back when you were talking about the

          5  accident and you said I think over the past year

          6  there were 25 scaffolding accidents; do you have any

          7  idea if they were supported?

          8                 MR. COLETTI: There were 25

          9  construction-related fatalities. I believe the

         10  information that we were able to get, somewhere in

         11  my testimony, I think five of the 21 deaths, and

         12  that's total, scaffolding, pipe scaffolding and

         13  hanging outrigger acts, and it's accounted for five

         14  of the 21 deaths, and 23 of the 108 injuries.

         15                 You know, when you measure the

         16  accidents that occurred in New York City,

         17  scaffolding accidents rank third. First were

         18  structures, and I'm trying to remember what the

         19  second one was.

         20                 But 15 percent of the accidents that

         21  were reported to the Buildings Department affecting

         22  the scaffolding industry. That were reported. I

         23  don't know how many haven't been reported.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: We also

         25  haven't been able to determine to kind of categorize
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          2  them into was it someone that didn't know how to

          3  load the scaffold, or was it pulled out and should

          4  have been put back. So, we have no idea, I don't

          5  know how important it is even, but what kinds of

          6  areas these accidents happened in.

          7                 MR. COLETTI: Well, Madam Chair, I

          8  think it's very important, and I have to give

          9  Commissioner Lancaster a tremendous amount of

         10  credit, because even though the statistics may not

         11  tell us what we actually --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Or was it

         13  someone that didn't actually know what they were

         14  doing, you know, that kind of stuff.

         15                 MR. COLETTI: Yes.

         16                 I think the Commissioners, the first

         17  Commissioner that I can remember in recent history

         18  that has actually looked into how the Department is

         19  receiving their standards, receiving their

         20  information. Some of the accidents that are included

         21  in the reports now are really not

         22  construction-related accidents, and I think over

         23  time, and part of the recommendations will be coming

         24  to you, which is try to get that more specific

         25  information so that you can address realistic
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          2  answers and solutions to the problem.

          3                 But I would respectfully suggest to

          4  you that if anybody tells you, oh, you can't require

          5  safety training in the people, it will drive the

          6  cost of construction out of this site, that is

          7  absolutely erroneous.

          8                 Safety training is not expensive,

          9  because in the end there are federal studies that

         10  have shown how it has reduced the cost of

         11  construction because what you pay out in injuries

         12  and debt more than makes up for anything that you

         13  were paying on the front end.

         14                 And I think, as you know, we have to

         15  keep into consideration, what's the cost of one

         16  life? That's what we're talking about.

         17                 If we can do more to prevent a death

         18  or an injury, then whatever we've paid for is worth

         19  it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         21  Lou.

         22                 Any questions? Only one.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIANA: Thanks, Madam

         24  Chair.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I just wanted
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          2  to ask for your comment.

          3                 Commissioner Lancaster, and she's

          4  done a wonderful job, and she has a long way to go

          5  to continue her efforts, but she had mentioned

          6  something about letting -- there's not going to be a

          7  universal training course or curriculum, that's the

          8  word she used, a universal curriculum out there, and

          9  judging from what you've said, I value your comments

         10  because they were right on target; do you think that

         11  you would disagree with that? There should be a

         12  universal curriculum. There's one that already

         13  exists, from what I'm hearing.

         14                 MR. COLETTI: Yes, absolutely. And I

         15  think I've had some preliminary discussions with the

         16  Commissioner, because she's the first, again, she's

         17  the first person that has attempted to coordinate

         18  with the federal Department of Occupational Safety

         19  Health Administration. OSHA is responsible for

         20  worker safety. The Department of Buildings is

         21  responsible for public safety. In the past, they've

         22  never communicated with each other. And I think we

         23  have all sat in the same room, and I absolutely

         24  believe that the OSHA, the 32-hour course that

         25  you've got mentioned in this bill is the industry
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          2  standard that everybody trains their people when

          3  you're talking about erecting scaffolds. The

          4  eight-hour refresher course is mandatory for anybody

          5  in my membership who is going to be on a scaffold.

          6  You have to take, and I think that that's a standard

          7  that should be implemented for anybody doing

          8  construction, working in construction.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Mr. Coletti,

         10  you're going to continue your discussion with the

         11  Commissioner to encourage her to do this universal

         12  curriculum, or?

         13                 MR. COLETTI: Absolutely. The report

         14  that we're putting together, she really charged us

         15  was putting this report together, and I think we

         16  have an obligation to share it with her. But I can

         17  tell you almost every recommendation in there will

         18  require us coming before this Committee into the

         19  City Council, and I fully intend to give you the

         20  full report.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Well, then I

         22  look forward to hearing it.

         23                 MR. COLETTI: Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: And, Lou, how
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          2  long did you say you thought?

          3                 MR. COLETTI: I'm hopeful by the end

          4  of this month we'll be done. I have my own executive

          5  board meeting on January the 21st, and tell people

          6  get ready to stay because let's agree or disagree

          7  and then get the report out. It's too important,

          8  it's been waiting too long.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, great.

         10                 Any other questions?

         11                 Gale?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I have a very

         13  quick question. Does the technology play any role in

         14  your report, or is there anything that could be done

         15  with technology to help on the safety? I know we're

         16  talking generally about technology, or I have, but I

         17  want it on the safety front.

         18                 I talked earlier about some of the

         19  materials going back and forth, is there some way in

         20  which you think that it can play a role?

         21                 MR. COLETTI: Are you talking about in

         22  terms of training the people?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: The Building

         24  Department. The Buildings Department, training,

         25  ongoing, you know, creative.
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          2                 MR. COLETTI: Yes and no. I mean I

          3  think we've tried to be narrow in scope, because I

          4  think before you get to the technology piece, you've

          5  got to have a strong process in place, and we don't

          6  have that process.

          7                 But, yes, technology can play a major

          8  role. The Department's technology, I mean, just the

          9  way they're collecting statistics, they don't have

         10  the ability to be able to come to this Council and

         11  say over the last year, X, Y and Z happened and

         12  here's why, and that desperately needs to be

         13  updated.

         14                 In terms of the training piece, I

         15  think over the long haul there are many of my

         16  companies whose people are actually trained through

         17  their computer, through agreements that they have

         18  with certified colleges, and they must put four

         19  hours aside as a test, so, yes, that's all possible.

         20  Over the long haul it's very possible.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Any other

         22  questions?

         23                 Thank you, sir.

         24                 MR. COLETTI: And thank you for your

         25  consideration.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Enjoy your

          3  trip to Boston. Bring warm fuzzy clothes.

          4                 Fernando Ramirez and Raul Garcia.

          5                 MR. GARCIA: Good afternoon. My name

          6  is Raul Garcia. This is Fernando Ramirez. He is here

          7  in support of the proposed bill 237 and he'll be

          8  speaking in Spanish and I'll translate for him.

          9  Basically he wants to tell about an accident he had

         10  while working on a scaffold.

         11                 MR. RAMIREZ: (Through the

         12  interpreter, Mr. Garcia.) Good afternoon. My name is

         13  Fernando Ramirez. I have 11 years working in

         14  construction with scaffolds, on scaffolds for 11

         15  years.

         16                 My reason for being here is to

         17  support this bill, to hopefully save some lives.

         18  Because in the 11 years that I've been working in

         19  the construction industry, I've seen a lot of

         20  co-workers get injured.

         21                 And personally I had an accident last

         22  year. I almost lost my life because of the platform

         23  of where I was working collapsed.

         24                 MR. GARCIA: He was working from a

         25  platform, he fell 30 feet.
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          2                 In the consequences of that accident

          3  is that he had surgery. He had a metal plate on his

          4  head.  He has metal in his wrist, in his arm, the

          5  pelvis area and many surgeries. And he expects more

          6  surgeries to follow.

          7                 MR. RAMIREZ: (Through the

          8  interpreter.) They should require people who

          9  assemble, put together the scaffolds, to be

         10  licensed, because the contractor simply asks us to

         11  work without inspecting the scaffolds, meaning the

         12  scaffolds that they themselves built. And they don't

         13  care about our lives. They just care about the job.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Let me ask a

         15  question. What was his job at the time? What was his

         16  position when he was working on the scaffold?

         17                 MR. GARCIA: He was to work on the

         18  scaffold putting bricks, or whatever was asked of

         19  him to do.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: And was he

         21  licensed in any way? Or did he have any kind of

         22  certificate?

         23                 MR. GARCIA: He said he doesn't want

         24  to answer that right now.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.
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          2                 And what kind of scaffolding were you

          3  on? Was it suspended or was it --

          4                 MR. GARCIA: The one he was working on

          5  was from the top.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: So it would

          7  be suspended.

          8                 MR. GARCIA: But he has worked on

          9  suspended in the ones that are supported from the

         10  ground.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Does he

         12  usually work with the same firm or he kind of goes

         13  wherever the work appears to be?

         14                 MR. GARCIA: With different companies.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: With

         16  different companies.

         17                 Does anybody have any questions?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I'm sorry, I'm

         19  just going to speak in Spanish. (In Spanish.)

         20                 MR. GARCIA: Thank you. That was nice.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I just

         22  mentioned to this gentleman that he's lucky to be

         23  alive and it's probably a miracle he is alive, and I

         24  wanted to assure him that if one day he does after

         25  so many surgeries, the continuous therapy he's going
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          2  to endure, that he can one day continue to work to

          3  provide for his family. Or when he does do so, to

          4  please acquire the proper training necessary so that

          5  his life won't be in danger again, and to please

          6  feel free and trust that this Committee will

          7  continue to further look into the safety of not only

          8  his live but his co-workers, and to please let the

          9  word out. He needs to start speaking to his

         10  co-workers, if he knows of others who are in the

         11  same situation, to come to us because this Committee

         12  can only do so much if there's a blind view that

         13  this is not affecting but so many, just a few, and

         14  we need to encourage the industry to work

         15  responsibly for responsible contractors.

         16                 MR. GARCIA: I wanted to thank you for

         17  that comment, because he, himself, is undocumented,

         18  and a lot of times they are afraid to come to City

         19  Hall, and that's one of the reasons I came to help

         20  him out as well.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: And the

         23  Committee wants to thank you for having the courage

         24  to come down and speak on behalf of the legislation.

         25  And good luck to you.
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          2                 Councilman Comrie.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Is he

          4  receiving long-term health care? How is he paying

          5  for these operations?

          6                 MR. GARCIA: Workers compensation.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And the

          8  company is still? Have they indicated any long-term

          9  assistance or he has to fight to get the workers

         10  comp?

         11                 MR. GARCIA: He's involved in a

         12  lawsuit right now.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: He's involved

         14  in a lawsuit. In other words, the company has not

         15  tried to step up to help him in any way?

         16                 MR. GARCIA: No.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So they

         18  dropped him right into the workers compensation, and

         19  you're helping him with the workers comp?

         20                 MR. GARCIA: I'm helping him with the

         21  lawsuit.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: With the

         23  lawsuit.

         24                 MR. GARCIA: Yes, the company hasn't

         25  offered anything.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

          3                 Were any other people injured at the

          4  time?

          5                 MR. GARCIA: No, he was the only one.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: He was the

          7  only one. Okay, thank you.

          8                 Again, I would echo what Council

          9  Member Reyna said. You know, we really appreciate

         10  you coming down and testifying in light of this

         11  situation, and we would hope that, you know,

         12  whenever he's fully healthy, that he can be -- and

         13  if we could help get him into a program where he's

         14  got the opportunity to be fully licensed and find a

         15  less hazardous employment. I'm sure after these

         16  operations, the scaffold is the last place that he'd

         17  want to go back to.

         18                 MR. GARCIA: Okay.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

         20                 MR. GARCIA: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: We have one

         22  more. Council Member Stewart.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         24  Madam Chair.

         25                 I just wanted to find out, we are
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          2  trying to put some teeth to this, and we were

          3  talking about licensure and having people trained,

          4  and we know that most of laborers, and not most, but

          5  quite a lot of laborers and folks who do this kind

          6  of work, brick work and pointing and things like

          7  that, they have limited English.

          8                 Don't you think it would be a problem

          9  at this time to require that there be some sort of

         10  licensure? What do you think about that?

         11                 MR. GARCIA: Licensing for the test,

         12  for the class to be in English, or what are you

         13  saying?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I'm saying,

         15  it would have to be in another language, but would

         16  you think if we put that requirement right now,

         17  would it be a problem?

         18                 MR. GARCIA: He said it wouldn't be a

         19  problem. Why he says?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Well, I'm

         21  saying a lot of the workers, they have limited

         22  English and it would be a burden for them to

         23  understand the language and it may put some of them

         24  out of Commission in terms of doing the job. If they

         25  have to be certified, most of it would be in

                                                            131

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  English.

          3                 MR. GARCIA: He said if they will

          4  study they will have to do that to get the

          5  certification.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right. Thank

          7  you.

          8                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

          9                 MR. GARCIA: Excuse me. So the

         10  training will be in English? Because the bill

         11  doesn't say anything about what languages or

         12  anything like that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: No. I'm just

         14  wondering, most likely it will be in more than one

         15  language, but there are quite a number of these

         16  workers that have limited English, and they might be

         17  with different language, there's a language barrier,

         18  so I'm just wondering if it will be an added burden

         19  on quite a number of folks who do not speak English

         20  as their native language.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: The current

         22  bill doesn't, of course, have any requirement for

         23  English. And I think if it did that would get us

         24  into lots of other categories too, so it's probably

         25  a discussion for another day.
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          2                 Thank you, again.

          3                 MR. GARCIA: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Steve

          5  McInnis. We saved the best for last.

          6                 Is there a Joel Magalliani somewhere?

          7                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:

          8  He left.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: He's with

         10  those guys.

         11                 Okay, Steve, you're on.

         12                 MR. McINNIS: Yes, for the record,

         13  just giving opposition on the issue.

         14                 For the last four years we've been

         15  working on this issue. We've presented the fact that

         16  we feel that the scaffolding industry, the standard

         17  scaffolding industry has not has any supervision,

         18  and it's created a dangerous situation and we've

         19  been prophetic in that. There's been a lot of

         20  accidents recently, and predominantly in the

         21  immigrant communities.

         22                 Our idea was to propose a certificate

         23  of fitness rather than a license for the workforce.

         24  A certificate of fitness doesn't have the language

         25  requirements.  We'd be willing to give the tests in
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          2  different languages and such.

          3                 We're out of kind of a diametrically

          4  opposed way of dealing with this than the Department

          5  of Buildings. They're looking to do this more of a

          6  top down than a bottom up. We're looking to license

          7  the workforce and giving them the training and

          8  creating a pool of workers, whether they be Latino

          9  immigrants, Asian, European immigrants and such, who

         10  predominate in the industry.

         11                 Basically, in our view, if you

         12  license the company owner standing on the street

         13  watching the work go up, you license the foreman,

         14  he's standing on the street watching the work go up,

         15  and if you don't license or certify or train the

         16  workforce, they're going up anyway, and they're the

         17  ones who are actually doing the work.

         18                 We feel that even though it's okay to

         19  license the company, it's okay to license the lead

         20  person, if you don't require training for the

         21  workforce, you're not really accomplishing anything

         22  out there. You're not really, you know, you're

         23  coming to the goal line without scoring. It's as

         24  simple as that.

         25                 You know, there's a long discussion
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          2  today on the various types of scaffolding out there,

          3  what's a supported scaffolding, what's a sidewalk

          4  bridge, you know, do we feel this should be applied

          5  to somebody painting the garage? No.

          6                 Do we feel that this should be

          7  applied to a 600-foot long sidewalk bridge that's

          8  12-foot high around a school? Yes. It's as simple as

          9  that.

         10                 So, our position is that we're

         11  willing to discuss with the Council, the Council

         12  members and with the Department of Buildings, what

         13  is proper cut-outs, what would be considered, you

         14  know, in the industry a realistic way to approach

         15  it. You know, is it 25 foot high but then 1,000 foot

         16  long? You know, that's a major construction project,

         17  multi-ton construction project with dozens of people

         18  working on it.

         19                 So, I don't think we're there yet on

         20  the actual what would we cut out? I think that's

         21  pretty much been a big topic today.

         22                 And then also, you know, who this

         23  should reply to, and as we've seen from this

         24  gentleman's testimony, he went from company to

         25  company without any training. If he was able to get
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          2  a certificate of fitness, that separates him from

          3  other workers. Another day laborer who's willing to

          4  do it for a dollar an less, or $5 a day less. It

          5  gives him a bit of equity out there in the workforce

          6  that we feel that can be provided.

          7                 Allowing different companies to put

          8  in their own curriculums we feel is ridiculous

          9  because of what's already been done out there.

         10                 The federal government has sat down

         11  with the industry and labor and have come up with

         12  real training courses. Why all of a sudden let

         13  people just -- one person might consider just two

         14  hours enough training, another person 60 hours,

         15  another person 40 hours.

         16                 So, we feel that there's progress, we

         17  feel, Madam Chairwoman, and the Council Member that

         18  they've spoken to that there is a real push this

         19  year hopefully to get something accomplished, and

         20  we'd like to be part of the process, and we

         21  hopefully by the end of this year will have a piece

         22  of legislation. That's it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Any

         24  questions?

         25                 Council Member Comrie.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Yes, Mr.

          3  McInnis, I appreciate you staying to the end to

          4  testify. And I think you were quite clear on what

          5  your position is. I mean, the need to do training so

          6  that every worker can have an opportunity for their

          7  own personal safety, and you did bring out the point

          8  about the 1,000 foot, 25, and I think that's a real

          9  issue that we have to deal with. And coming up with,

         10  as Council Member Reyna said, a comprehensive

         11  curriculum that would fit as opposed to leaving it

         12  to individuals, that something is going to have to

         13  be worked out.

         14                 I know that a City of this magnitude

         15  it is difficult to come up with one standard

         16  sometimes, but it's necessary.

         17                 Are you involved in this discussion?

         18                 MR. McINNIS: Yes, we've discussed it

         19  with our subcontractors hopefully who had testified

         20  today, and we've had some discussions with the

         21  Buildings Department, we're looking to keep

         22  following up on that.

         23                 You know, the standard curriculum we

         24  feel, you know, whether it's a union program, a

         25  private program, there's going to be different ways
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          2  it's going to be actually put in, but the common

          3  syllabus we feel is important.

          4                 You know, our training would

          5  definitely be more hands on than one applied by

          6  CUNY, there would probably be more theory in that,

          7  but just the basic remnants we feel is important.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. Well,

          9  the unrestricted use of day laborers, though,

         10  wouldn't that create a larger pool?

         11                 MR. McINNIS: Well, it would separate

         12  -- a day laborer who has gone through this training

         13  is inherently more valuable to a contractor than one

         14  who hasn't. So they're more likely to continue

         15  utilizing them, you know, keeping a pool of workers,

         16  rather than -- as I say, somebody is willing to work

         17  for a dollar an hour less or five dollars a day

         18  less, they're taking the time, the money and the

         19  effort to put them through a training program,

         20  they're more likely to keep them as a core

         21  workforce.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: All right.

         23  Thank you.

         24                 Thank you, Chairwoman.

         25                 MR. McINNIS: No problem.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

          3  Member Stewart.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

          5  Madam Chair.

          6                 Sir, how do you answer the critic,

          7  for example, some of the folks who have testified

          8  earlier that it's too costly to do certificate of

          9  fitness for all the workers, because my point was

         10  that, I wanted not only the people who put up the

         11  scaffold to have a certificate of fitness, but also

         12  the people who work up there, at least they should

         13  understand the safety, what they need to go through

         14  and they should be certified; how do you answer the

         15  critic that it's too costly?

         16                 MR. McINNIS: I think as Lou alluded

         17  to, sometimes the more you train the more you save.

         18  It's basically people out there like -- our union

         19  contractors in this industry are already doing this,

         20  and it's already inherently in the cost, and there

         21  won't be a major drain on the cost.

         22                 You're looking at two four-hour

         23  nights for scaffolding users and awareness course.

         24  They have safety meetings all the time on these

         25  major projects. You know, a lot of the scaffold

                                                            139

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  collapses that were referred to are people who are

          3  altering the scaffolding, or taking off to put in

          4  windows or to put in blocks and stuff, and they

          5  should have at least a basic knowledge of the

          6  possible damage that they can do.

          7                 If you want to define it to people

          8  who actually manipulate for that, that's something

          9  that we talked about, do we have to certify every

         10  engineer who steps on the scaffolding or architect

         11  or project manager who walks on it to utilize it?

         12  That we feel maybe not, but anybody who really kind

         13  of manipulates the scaffolding feel we should have a

         14  uses course, just to know what they're doing. As

         15  they said, the hoist went down at the Conde Nast

         16  building, they said it was loosened bolts, it was

         17  bolts not replaced. It was people who weren't

         18  actually erecting the scaffolding but were

         19  manipulating it.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Then after

         21  you have gone through certification, how do you

         22  administer that?

         23                 MR. McINNIS: There's a number of

         24  different certifications required of the City of New

         25  York. If you're going to use a cartridge-loaded
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          2  shotgun to nail something down, you have to carry a

          3  certification license. The Fire Department checks on

          4  that.

          5                 The Fire Department shows up on the

          6  site, they do inspections, those people using it

          7  have to be carrying a card in their pocket.

          8                 We see a similar kind of situation

          9  with the certificate of fitness, that, you know,

         10  either ID, you know, picture ID that this is the

         11  person who has completed the course, this is when

         12  they've been taking their updates and it can be

         13  administered like that.

         14                 That if there's a complaint to the

         15  Department of Buildings that there's a whole crew up

         16  here, some of them are trained and they're erecting

         17  scaffolding, you know, if they do decide to show up,

         18  they'll be able to check their identification that

         19  they've completed these courses, from somebody at

         20  the DOB, whether it's our training program or

         21  mechanics institute, or CUNY, can keep a log of who

         22  is actually doing the training and who has completed

         23  the training.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And also, do

         25  you feel, you know, I know you were trying to
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          2  explain it earlier, do you feel that for the

          3  requirement of being certified, should be the -- the

          4  height should be lowered from 26 feet?

          5                 MR. McINNIS: I think 26 feet is kind

          6  of an arbitrary kind of thing, it's not really

          7  reflective of the industry. It's kind of people

          8  like, you know, a 26-foot scaffold that fits in the

          9  size of this room, you know, a 26-foot scaffold that

         10  is around a City block, you know, it's 26 foot high,

         11  and how long is the run, 30 foot, 40 foot? Is it

         12  contained in a realm? There is no realm on length.

         13  If you just do height without length, you're really

         14  not capsulizing it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

         16  Thank you very much.

         17                 MR. McINNIS: No problem.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         19  Member Brewer.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you for

         21  waiting also.

         22                 Of course, as Eli was teaching the

         23  course, then everybody would be fine.

         24                 The question is, maybe this was

         25  answered earlier, but I respect what you have to
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          2  say, right now the courses that are taught in

          3  general, do they cost money?

          4                 If I'm a day laborer and I want to

          5  take the course, does the OSHA course cost --

          6                 MR. McINNIS: Well, it's something

          7  that could be done in many different ways.

          8                 It can be done whether a company has

          9  his workforce or her workforce and wants to, you

         10  know, as I say, pay for their workers to take the

         11  course at CUNY. Of if it's a union company, they

         12  would, it's inherently already in there, we have

         13  that. But what are you looking to accomplish? You

         14  have certain people who apply to high standards, you

         15  have certain other companies that apply to no

         16  standards.

         17                 You know, the people who apply to no

         18  standards will have to go into their pocket and pay

         19  for training? I'm not losing sleep over that really.

         20  It's not something that really is not to me an

         21  impediment to putting this in force.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I just want to

         23  be sure that people take it, and I agree with you on

         24  the overall goal, I'm just trying to see how one

         25  goes about it.
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          2                 So, right now it's different ways in

          3  which one learns about courses and different ways in

          4  which the courses are paid for.

          5                 MR. McINNIS: You know, who is doing

          6  the scaffolding erections? Predominantly your

          7  immigrant workforce. You know, some company that's

          8  predominantly Romanian, some company that is

          9  predominantly Ecuadorian, some company that is

         10  predominantly Irish, and from those areas, each

         11  company has a different crew of people, sometimes

         12  they rotate, sometimes they don't, but they go

         13  through a lot of turnover on these, but if they had

         14  to train them and carry a certificate, they don't

         15  come a dime a dozen anymore, they can't. They

         16  shuffle them around. They would have to make a

         17  commitment to being safe or they will be out of

         18  business, and then that work will be picked by a

         19  company that is making --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Would OSHA, in

         21  the best of all worlds, expand that course? That

         22  would be one way to handle it in terms of the --

         23                 MR. McINNIS: It's an OSHA course.

         24  It's not like OSHA goes out and is given this course

         25  on Tuesdays at 5:00.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: They do the

          3  curriculum.

          4                 MR. McINNIS: They have a curriculum

          5  that any interested party or company or union or any

          6  organization can pick up and apply. And OSHA will

          7  come and check the program, and then they'll give

          8  you help and such.

          9                 It's not that we're saying that you

         10  only have to do, the New York City District Council

         11  Carpenters' Course at our building.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right. Okay,

         13  thank you very much.

         14                 MR. McINNIS: Okay.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         16  very much, as always.

         17                 MR. McINNIS: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: And we

         19  actually have one more person to testify.

         20                 MR. MAGALLIANI: I'm Brother Joel

         21  Magalliani. I'm the Executive Director of the

         22  Tepayac Asociacion, with network of 40

         23  community-based organizations in New York City,

         24  namely founded for Mexicans.

         25                 First I'm going to say thank you for

                                                            145

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  paying attention about this issue. I think you are

          3  doing a wonderful job for paying attention about the

          4  scaffolding. And you know, the Mexicans are one of

          5  the newest communities in New York City, probably

          6  have more than 500,000 Mexicans in New York City and

          7  the five boroughs of New York, and we have an office

          8  here in Manhattan, our central office, and we

          9  usually receive complaints about different

         10  employers, companies, and we have the last two

         11  cases, one is Fernando, the last person who was

         12  here, and like Fernando have more people who are

         13  suffering this kind of a situation in accidents, and

         14  a lot of them because they have their problem with

         15  their status, they don't usually go any place to say

         16  we got this accident, and we are injured.

         17                 So, basically we have a lot of cases

         18  and people are not saying anything and they are not

         19  complaining to anybody or to any institution.

         20                 So, I think this job that you are

         21  doing is very important. So, I came just to say we

         22  want to endorse the proposal, 237, and especially

         23  because I think New York City is kind of like around

         24  1 million undocumented immigrants, and a lot of them

         25  are working in the construction industry, and some
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          2  of them are working under scaffolds.

          3                 And basically I think that we want to

          4  support any union, any Council member, any

          5  institution which can enforce the protection for the

          6  workers.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

          9  very much.

         10                 We appreciate you coming today and

         11  finding us.

         12                 MR. MAGALLIANI: Okay.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Anybody have

         14  any questions?

         15                 Go ahead, Diana.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I just wanted

         17  to thank you for coming down and it gives me a sense

         18  or relief to know that you exist, so that if I ever

         19  have a laborer -- I have a district where there are

         20  a lot of day laborers, and it's very difficult to

         21  get them help or send them off to an agency that

         22  exists, such as yours, and I'd like your card after

         23  this hearing, but in the instance when you get these

         24  complaints, what does your agency do?

         25                 Do you report them to the Department
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          2  of Buildings?

          3                 MR. MAGALLIANI: Basically the Labor

          4  Department and also we try to get some assistance

          5  from different lawyers, especially we can send

          6  workers to the lawyers, we do the follow up until

          7  they can get the help.

          8                 Also, we try to get help from the

          9  hospitals. Usually we have, you know, Mexican people

         10  are probably 95 percent are immigrants, undocumented

         11  immigrants, and they don't have Medicaid, so we have

         12  to go around the friends and people that we know to

         13  get the assistance from these workers.

         14                 So, you can use our organizations to

         15  raise other examples of people who have been injured

         16  and basically we try to do the follow-up about each

         17  case which is coming to our office.

         18                 People are coming to our office and

         19  we try to see how they can be helped.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Do you take

         21  those complaints, the actual complaints that come

         22  from the workers themselves, and forward them to the

         23  City?

         24                 MR. MAGALLIANI: Sure.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: What
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          2  Department?

          3                 MR. MAGALLIANI: Basically we try to

          4  go to the Labor Department.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: That's it. Not

          6  the Department of Buildings?

          7                 MR. MAGALLIANI: Not there. Basically

          8  we try to push these people to go to the lawyers and

          9  then they do the other connections with the other

         10  institutions.

         11                 You know, basically when we start

         12  taking this, any case, we have to convince the

         13  people that they can be defend (sic) from the

         14  lawyers, they can receive attention from the

         15  hospitals, so it's kind of a work to convince people

         16  that they can receive attention.

         17                 In the beginning they think because

         18  I'm undocumented immigrant, I'm afraid to go any

         19  place. And I was reading the proposal, and I think

         20  everybody who is working on the scaffold has to have

         21  training, even if they are undocumented immigrants.

         22                 So, I don't think that we have to say

         23  you don't need to receive training because you are

         24  undocumented immigrants, you are not willing to work

         25  on the scaffold, so that thing could be pushing
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          2  undocumented immigrants to receive less attention

          3  from employers, and then they will have more

          4  violations, because if the immigrants are not doing

          5  training they will be in bigger danger.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I understand

          7  that completely.

          8                 I just wanted to encourage you to

          9  stay in touch with the City Department of Buildings

         10  more so, because they can be an entity that can help

         11  you.

         12                 MR. MAGALLIANI: Sure. I will be aware

         13  about it.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you.

         15                 MR. MAGALLIANI: Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         17  very much.

         18                 MR. MAGALLIANI: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I have

         20  another testimony here from James BiFulco,

         21  Metropolitan Chapter of the American Society of

         22  Safety Engineers, and we will be reading this into

         23  the testimony. That's it.

         24                 Intro. 237 will be laid over. And I

         25  thank you all, those of you that are left, for
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          2  attending. And we'll see you at the next hearing.

          3  Meeting is ended.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 4:00 p.m.)
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 16th day of January 2003.
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